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Enhancing Value through Extending Ouv Competitiveness.

“Xi Hu's consevvancy takes loads of consultation;
Ot the six sitted pells mouvning Mavquis of “Blan;
nA 4
Then the stone coadnit and the CAUSEMAY of vape-tuvuips weve successively built;
The succesats of “Bai and Ju eashvined with the evedasting matec”
)

~ “Consevvancy of Xt Hu", Chen Can -

“For centuvies, the beauty of Xi Hu Cthe est Laked has captivated the immortals of diffevent evas, yet its floods have also
brought suffevings to the public. As one tours avound Xi Hu, the vavious contvibutions on Xi Hu's conservancy by the

immovtals of vavious evas will be found enshvined evevgmheve.

“Bai (]ugi of the T)?.ng Eﬁgmst\g, Ju Jhi of the Sonﬁ ngmutg. ’\lgsmf, Meuﬂging and Jun 6Ai of the J\/Linﬂ }b&mst\g
axd Ruan Yuan of the Qing Dyrasty have contributed greatly fo solving Xi Hu's flood problem. Their contvibutions
throughout the centuvies vesulted ix today's scenic XK Hu, whose "Thvee Causepays and Three lsles™ ave unmatched and
venopmred it the porld.

“Fov tea aeavs, Zhejiang 6>cpvrt.s.spm3 has beew devoting itself to tithancing value through exteading its competitiveness.
Jooking back at the past, it is also obsevvable that the Company management and the whole staff team have been making
developwment efforts on vavious Aspects in diffevent stages, theveby bullding up todays success.

The Company's successful listing on tae Hong Kong Jtock Exchange in 1997 has opentd up 4 financing channel in the
intermational capital mavket. Subsequenly, folloping the full commencement of the Shanghai—Hangzhou- Ningbo Expressmag,
the incovpovation of Shangsan Co, and then the undevtaking of the widening project to develop the provinces fivst §-lane
expressway, the Compang's key assets have become the transpoviation hubs of Shejiang Province, while Zhejiang Expressmag
has Also Assumed the important vole of the provinces major expressmay opevatov: Through quality management and 4 customev—
fivst operating approach, the Company has seen its expresspags’ traffic volume and toll income vising continuousty throughout
the years, Meanwmhile, the Compnng is actively Awdopinﬂ prnssw\g—nb\tcd business opevations, such As sevvice Aveas,
peivol stations and vehicle sevvice, whick. kave begun to offer .signi‘(imwt vevenue contributions to the Compdmyj in vesent yeas.
On the other hand, the Compﬂng has been endeavoring to enhance its aovevnance standard, mith measuves such As mtﬁb{isking
vavious independent committees to vequate the Compang's opevation. lu only ten peavs, Zhejiang Expressiay kas become the
only H-share toll-voad company to ackieve ten consecutive yeavs of double-digit net profit gromth, As well as oe of the leading
listed Chinese toll-voad companics, stvongly favored by ouerseas investors.

[n the past ten geavs, sZhejiang Expressivay has made proud ackieutwments. Looking ahedd, the Compang will base on its
achievements and expevience in the past tex yeavs and adheve to its prudent but progvessive development stvategies to streagthen
its cove business. The Compm‘g will set its siﬂht on crmtinﬁ 4 top-calibre sevvice braud in the national expresspdy sectoy,
wAimizing shaveholdevs’ value and making move contributions to the economic and social development of SZhejiang “Province.
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Definition of Terms

ADR(s)
ADS(s)

Advertising Co

Audit Committee
Board

Company

Communications
Investment Group

Development Co

Directors
GDP
Group

H Shares

Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Huajian

Jiaxing Co

JoinHands Technology

Jiashao Co

Listing Rules

Period

Petroleum Co

PRC

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.

American Depositary Receipt(s)
American Depositary Shara(s)

Zhejiang Expressway Advertising Co., Ltd (#iT S EERBRET DR, a 70%
owned subsidiary of Develcpment Co

the audit committee of the Company
the board of directors of the Company

Zhejiang Expressway Co., Lid., a joint stock limited company incorporated in the
PRC with limited lability on March 1, 1997

Zhejiang Communications Investment Group Co., Ltd. (T A 2 @it S EHR
/A 8)), a wholly State-owned enterprise established on December 29, 2001

Zhejfiang Expressway Investment Development Co., Ltd. GITT B EKRERES
MR, a 51% owned suksidiary of the Company

the directors of the Company
gross domestic product
the Company and its subsidiaries

the overseas listed foreign shares of Rmb1.00 each in the share capital of the
Company which are primarily listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and traded
in Hong Kong dollars

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Huajian Transportation Economic Development Center (EERISRGERZED ),
a State-owned enterprise

2l

Zhejiang Jiaxing Expressway Co., Lid. (MIEHEEARERETAT), a
90.9995% owned subsidiary of the Company

JoinHands Technology Co., Ltd. (1B ERIT B RN AR5, a 27.582%
owned associate of the Company

Zhejiang Jiashao Expressway Co., Lid. (I RRSE LB ERLF]), a 35%
owned associate of the Company

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Keng Limited

the period from January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2008

Zhejiang Expressway Petroleum Development Co., Ltd. (#TT SRS HBER
[RAF]), a 50% owned associate of the Company

the People’s Republic of China




Rmb

Services Co

Shangsan Co

Shareholders

Shida Co

Supervisory Committee

Yuhang Co

Zheshang Securities

Renminbi, the lawful currency cf the PRC

Zhejiang Expressway Vehicle Towing and Rescuge Services Co., Ltd. (lITmED
PERE I ERTE AR A F)), a 85% owned subsidiary of Development Co

Zhejiang Shangsan Expressway Co., Ltd. (/T E=@ERARAER AT, a
73.625% owned subsidiary of the Company

the shareholders of the Company

Hangzhou Shida Highway Co., Ltd. MiMAAREER X)), a 50% jointly-
controlled entity of the Company

the supervisory committee of the Company

Zhejiang Yuhang Expressway Co., Ltd. GIiVL MM EREGREE LR, a51%
owned subsidiary of the Company

Zheshang Securities Co., Ltd. G @EAHHREERF]), a 70.46% owned
subsidiary of the Shangsan Co., Ltd.

2006 ANNUAL REPGRT
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Company Profile

Zhejiang Expressway Co., Ltd. is an infrastructure
company principally engaged in investing in, developing
and operating high grade roads. The Company and its
subsidiaries also carry out certain ancillary businesses
such as automobile servicing, operation of gas stations
and billboard advertising along expressways.

Major assets under management include the 248km
Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway and the
142km Shangsan Expressway, both of which are situated
within Zhejiang Province in the PRC. As at December
31, 20086, total assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries amounted to Rmb19,570.4 million.

The Company was incorporated on March 1, 1997 as
the main vehicle of the Zhejiang Provincial Government
for investing in, developing and operating expressways
and Class 1 roads in Zhejiang Province.

The H Shares of the Company, which represent
approximately 33% of the issued share capital of the
Company, were listed on the Hong Kong Stock

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO,, LTD.

Exchange on May 15, 1997, and subsequently obtained
a secondary listing on the London Stock Exchange on
May 5, 2000.

On February 14, 2002, a Level | American Depositary
Receipt program sponsored by the Company in respect
of its H Shares, with the Bank of New York as depositary,
was established in the United States and became
effective.

On August 12, 2005, a 10-year corporate bend of the
Company, issued on January 24, 2003, was listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Building upon its expressway operations and expanded
expressway-related business operations, the Company
intends to broaden its business scope to incorporate
other transport-related infrastructure projects over time
to achieve its long-term vision of becoming a leading
company investing in and operating infrastructure
businesses with an emphasis on expressways in the
PRC.




Set out below is the corporate and business structure of the Group:

Holdors of Communlcations
m e Gmup Huq.{an
| 33% 56% 1%

The Company IRt .
—T 1

1
1
v 1
|
| ! .
[ \
P T

73.625% 51% 98.9995% 51% i 50% i 35% |27.582% : 50%
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ERRIEEET T e g | Expressway
| 145.0 km

Shanghai - Hangzhou Expressway ‘
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_______ jointty-controlied entity
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Major Corporate Events

February 14, 2006

The Company held an Extraordinary General Meeting to
elect members of the Company’s Fourth Session of the
Board and of the Supervisory Committee and to approve
their remunerations. The terms of the Directors and
Supervisors of the Fourth Session was for three years
from March 1, 2006 untit February 28, 2009,

April 20, 2006

Shangshan Company, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement for the acquisition of a total
of 70.46% sharehelding in Kinghing Securities Co., Ltd.

April 26, 2006

The Company announced its 2005 annual results in
Hong Kong, and thereafter conducted its results
presentations in Hong Kong, Singapore, the United
Kingdom and the US.

June 14, 2006

The Company convened the 2005 Annual General
Meeting. The meeting approved the distribution of a final
dividend of Rmb0.15 per share, the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong as the international auditors of the Company;
and the re-appointment of Zhejiang Pan China Certified
Public Accountants as the PRC auditors of the Company.

July 1, 2006
Kinghing Securities Co., Ltd. {"Kinghing Securities"}, a

subsidiary of the Company, held the third extraordinary
general meeting where the new articles of association

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.

were passed and the new board of directors was elected.
On August 4, 2006, having been approved by the CSRC,
Kinghing Securities was renamed as “Zheshang
Securities Co., Lid.” (HBEHFEREIT QR

("Zheshang Securities”).
August 30, 2006

The Company announced its 2006 interim results in
Hong Kong, and thereafter conducted interim results
presentation activities in Hong Kong and Singapore.

November 16, 2006

The Company convened an extraordinary general
meeting to approve the distribution of an interim dividend
of Rmb0.07 per share.

December 18, 2006

The China Unionpay bankcard ( $REE+) system was in
full operation in all of the 33 toll stations along the
Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway and the
Shangshan Expressway. It was the first time such
modern electronic payment method was launched on
expressways in China.

March 10, 2007

The Company entered into agreements with Jinhua
Municipal Road Management Bureau( & E# M Q& I8
Bt) and Dongyang Municipal Transport Investment Co.,
Ltd. (REBEHWRBIREFBEAF) to acquire an
aggregate of 23.45% equity interest in Zhejiang Jinhua
Yongjin Expressway Co., Ltd. (I I € EB e 5 E DK
F B 2 7)) for a total consideration of Rmb 281.4 million.
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Particulars of Major Road Projects

Remaining
Percentage of Lengthin Number of Number of Number of Start of Years of
Expressway Ownership Kilometers Lanes Toll Stations Service Areas Operation Operation
Shanghai-Har gzhou Expressway
- Jiaxing Section 09.9995% 88.1 7 1 1998 22
- Yuhang Saction 51% 111 2 0 1995-1988 22
— Hangzhou Section 100% 3.4 1 0 1995 22
Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway
- Hongken o Guzhu section 100% 440 1 1995 21
— Other sections 100% 101.0 8 1 1992-1996 2
Shangsan Expressway 73.625% 142.0 11 3 2000 24
TOLL RATES ON THE SHANGHAI-HANGZHOU-NINGBO EXPRESSWAY
Before adjustment on January 1, 2005:
Vahicle Entrance Fee Mileage Fee
Class Classification Standard RAmb Amb/km
1 Passenger vehicle with up to 20 seats 5 0.45
Truck with tonnage of 2 tons or below
2 Passenger vehicle with seats above 20 and up to 40 i0 0.80
Truck with tonnage of above 2 tons and up to 5 tons
3 Passenger vehicle with seats above 40 15 1.20
Truck with tonnage of above 5 tons and up to 10 tons
Truck with tonnage above 10 tons and up to 20 tons 20 1.60
Truck with tonnage above 20 tons 25 2.00
After adjustment on January 1, 2005:
Vehicle Entrance Fee Mileage Foe
Class Classification Standard Rmb Rmb/km
1 Passenger vehicle with up to 20 seats 5 0.45
Truck with tonnage of 2 tons or below
2 Passenger vehicle with seats above 20 and up to 40 10 0.80
Truck with tonnage of above 2 tons and up to 5 tons
3 Passenger vehicle with seats above 40 15 1.20
Truck with tonnage of above 5 tons and up to 10 tons
Truck with tonnage above 10 tons and up to 15 tons 15 1.40
Truck with tonnage above 15 tons 20 1.60

Toll rates on the Shangsan Expressway are the same as the above except for the mileage fee for Class 1 vehicles,

which is Bmb0.40/km.

2006 ANNUAL REPORT
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Financial and Operating Highlights

RESULTS
i Year ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Rmb'000 Rmb'0Q0 R 000 Rmby'000 ] Rmb’000
Revanue 2,168,078 2,471,805 3,131,903 3,458,385 4,763,780
Profit Before Tax 1,391,770 1,587,369 1,899,206 2,264,662 2,742,927
Income Tax Expense (398,251) (491,3486) {542,749) (692,366} (884,036)
Profit for the year 993,519 1,086,023 1,356,457 1,572,206 1,858,891
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 890,452 1,708,792 1,225,699 1,431,192 1,652,871
Minority interests (103,067) (87,231) (130,758) (141,104) 206,020
Eaming Per Share (EPS) 20.50 cents 23.23 cents 28.22 cents 32.95 cents 38.06 cents
RETURN ON EQUITY (ROE)
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
ROE 9.18% 9.94% 11.43% 12.78% 13.90%

MONTHLY AVERAGE DAILY FULL TRIP TRAFFIC VOLUME

Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway Shangsan Expressway

2005 20086 2007 2005 2006 2007
January 33,727 35,342 38,233 19,812 20,079 19,057
February 30,831 33,785 40,239 20,861 20,174 23,618
March 36,083 38,810 42,536 20,301 19,897 22,132
April 38,102 40,789 21,162 20,554
May 35,751 39,255 20,063 20,215
Jung 35,368 38,307 19,201 18,619
July 34,088 37,087 18,918 18,69
August 34121 38,716 19,218 19,379
September 35,968 40,870 20,048 20,542
October 36,117 40,342 19,842 20,7117
MNovember 35,440 39,486 19,477 19,428
December 35,738 39,375 19,109 18,136
Average 35,143 38,536 19.824 19,783

8 ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.




Revenue (Rmb Million) Net profit (Rmb Million)
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Clairman’s Slatement

Mithout doubt, it is this kind of passion fov excellence
that has made us excel, and the same passion
will kelp us sustain ouv leadevship fov the peavs to come.

GENG Xiaoping

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.




Dear Shareholders,

We have come a long way ...
and we will go much farther.

| am pleased to report that year 2008 was another good
year of solid growth for Zhejiang Expressway. Its revenue
grew 37.8% to Rmb4,763.78 million, while net profit grew
15.5% to Rmb1,652.87 million. This is the tenth
consecutive year of double-digit growth achieved by your
Company, thanks to China's continued economic growth
as well as the unceasing pursuit for excellence on the
part of the Directors and staff of Zhejiang Expressway.

Time really flies. Year 2007 marks Zhejfiang Expressway’s
10th anniversary. It seems just like yesterday when we
stood in the middie of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
trading hall on May 15, 1997, announcing to Hong Kong
and overseas investors the debut of trading of the
Company's H shares. Alas, how much we have done

and how far we have gone ever since!

Ten years later, not only has Zhejiang Expressway
become an exemplary expressway operator in the
province where it carries out its business operations. it

is also a leading Chinese overseas-listed expressway
enterprise both in terms of market capitalization and
international reputation. When evaluated by profit
records, the Company is also the only Chinese
expressway operator that has consistently maintained
double-digit growth year after year throughout its ten
years' history.

On top of corporate success is Zhejiang Expressway's
achievement in developing its human resources and
corporate values that are indispensable in securing a
company’s "longevity". As a founding chairman of the
Company, | feel very comforting to see that other than
those who have retired, all of the “pioneer” staff who
helped me build the Company from scratch ten years
ago are still working alongside with me today, and they
are still as devoted as ever to contributing their best
efforts to help further grow this company. | am equally
proud to see that today, Zhejiang Expressway is as
energetic as ever in its endeavors to improve itself in
every aspect of its business operations, from expressway
operations to financial management, and from day-to-
day monitoring of its traffic flows to long-term planning
of corporate development.

2006 ANNUAL REPORT
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Chairman’s Statement

Such passion for excellence was there ten years ago,
and is still here today, and | am confident that it will still
be there ten years from now. Without doubt, it is this
kind of passion for excellence that has made us excel,
and the same passion will help us sustain our leadership
for the years to come.

Like Rome, the West Lake of Hangzhou is not built in
one day. lts scenic beauty is a result of centuries of
conservancy works apart from its natural gifts. Like the
West Lake's beauty, Zhejiang Expressway's
achievements have come a long way, embodying the
contributions of our hardworking and devoted staff and
the continued support of our other stakeholders. But
we are also aware that ten years is still a relatively short
history compared with the track records of some of the
world's best corporations. We do have a long way to
go. But as a company, Zhejiang Expressway and its staff
have the determination — and the essential qualities - to
go much farther, for much greater success.

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.

The Company owes its success hitherto to the support
of its stakehalders — shareholders and investors,
business partners, customers, staff and the community
af large. On behalf of the Company, | would like to take
this opportunity to extend to them our sincerest
appreciation, and would like to re-affirm to them that
our dedication to ever-improving ourselves will never
cease, and that they can expect that the Company’s
value will continue to be enhanced for many more years
to come.

GENG Xiaoping
Chairrnan
April 24, 2007
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The first large-scale public effort in history to resolve Xi Hu's floods

i The beauty of Xi Hu is captivating, but its floods have aiso brought sufferings to the public. Bai Juyi was the first
~ in history to organize a targe-sca|e pubkic effort to resolve Xi Hu's floeds. When Bai was appointed the governor of
Hangzhou during }he reign of. Emperor yuzong of the Tang Dynasty, he came to know that the six wells prowdang@\v’“’
drinking water 10 ‘the public were sﬂted \and the causeways around Xi Hu had collapsed, with iarmland suffering
<fr0m droughts and floods as a resutt. Bai dredged Ihe le sﬂted wells and bullt a tong causeway 't block the water
the upper 1ake thereby resolving the drought and ﬂoads whlch plagued fie farrrlland fround the lower lake.
"Ji existing Bai Causeway on Xi Hu was originally called Ba:sha Causeway, and was renamed Bai Causeway to
ey emora!e Bai Juyl s monumental contnhutlons to Xi Hu.

1997

{ncovpovation and listing of Zhejiang Expresspay: Opening the international
financing channels

R hejiang Expressipay pas incovporated in Mavch 1997 and tlisted on the Homy Kong Stock Exchange in
Mag of the same geay; theveby successfully opening a finansing chanel in the intevnational capital mavket to
suppovt the long—term development of the Company. Jince the Company's listing, maintaining effective
communication mith investors and maximizing shaveholders' value have alnays been p%hejimg éxprassmrag's
top priovity. "By rop, Zhejiang Expressipay has become one of the leading listed Chinese toll-voad companies,
strongly favoved by institutional investors in tHong Kong and ovevseas. Meanwhile, the string of apards
mon by the Company in the intevnational capital mavket aptly evidences the investment communitys vote of

trust and vecoguition fov the Company.




Management Discussion and Analysis

FANG Yunti

BUSINESS REVIEW

As the first year in the eleventh Five-Year National
Economic Development Plan, year 2006 saw the
economy in Zhejiang Province expand by 13.6% in GDP
compared to the national GDP growth rate of 10.7%.
More important than the rate of economic growth was
improved quality of economic growth achieved in the
province: better coordination among various industries
and a more balanced growth throughout different regions
of the province.

GDP Growth Rates
(%)
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" National Zhejiang Province

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.

Tne strong economic growth in Zhejiang Province during
the Period continued to generate increased demand for
road transport. Such demand was in turn met by an
expanding road network, providing an impetus for
sustained traffic volume growth on roadways in general
and expressways in particular.

Mileage of Expressways in Operation

In Zhejiang Province

Kilometers
2500 -

2000 -
1500 -
1000 -

500 -

1996 1997 1995 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

While toll income from expressway operations remained
the mainstay of the Group during the Period, the
oroportion of contribution to total income from the
Group’s other business operations, such as gas stations,
restaurants and shops in service areas, continued to
grow. Together with revenue coniribution in the second
half of 2006 from the newly acquired securities business,
total revenue of the Group during the Period amounted
to Rmb4,763.8 million, representing an increase of
37.8% over 2005.




A detailed breakdown of the Group’s income for the

Period is set out below:

2006 2005
Rmb'00¢ Rmb’00¢ % Change
Tollincome
Shanghai-
Hangzhou-Ningbo
Expressway 2,810,489 2,519,676 11.5%
Shangsan Expressway 833,823 830,994 0.3%
Other income
Service areas
business income 968,476 230,183 320.7%
Advertising
business income 53,228 48,045 10.8%
Road maintenance
income 5633 2,568 119.4%
Securities operation
Commission
and brokerage
income 173,372 - -
Bank interest income 20,491 - -
Subtotat 4,865,512 3,631,466 34.0%
Less: Revenue taxes (101,732} (175,081) -41.9%
Revenue 4,763,780 3,456,385 37.8%

Income Breakdown

21% 4%
| |
\ /
75%
™M o [ ]
Toll Income Expressway-related Securities
Business Income operation Income
EXPRESSWAY OPERATIONS

Total toll income from the 248km Shanghai-Hangzhou-
Ningbo Expressway and the 142km Shangsan
Expressway amounted to Rmb3,644.3 million during the
Period, representing an increase of 8.8% over 2005 and
contributing to 74.9% of the Group’s total income. Traffic
volume growth during the Period, however, varied
substantially for different sections of the expressways.

>
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Traffic Volume & Growth Rates
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After the compiletion of the second phase of the widening
project along the Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo
Expressway by the end of 2005, traffic volume on the
Shanghai-Hangzhou Expressway experienced a strong
rebound with a 17.4% increase over 2005, averaging
42,297 full-trip equivalents per day.

Traffic volume on the Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway
grew by a substantially lower rate of 2.7% during the
Period, averaging 35,8086 full-trip equivalents per day,
mainty due to the ongoing third phase widening works
carried out along the section, and to a lesser degree,
due to traffic diversions to other expressways that had
been newly opened.

ZHEJANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.

The Shangsan Expressway saw its traffic volume dip by
0.2% during the Period, averaging 19,783 full-trip
equivalents per day, mainly due to a parallel national road
reopened to traffic after an extended period of partial
closure for renovation, and also to a lesser degree, due
10 traffic diversions to other expressways that had been
newly opened.

Unonpey We SJETET e £

iy China Unionpay
As part of the Company's cantinued effort to increase
operating efficiency and reduce cash transactions in its
expressway operations, starting from November 1, 2006,
toll stations along the Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo
Expressway and the Shangsan Expressway began to
accept widely distributed China Unionpay bankcards
($REER), the first such adoption of the bankcards on
expressways in China.

EXPRESSWAY-RELATED BUSINESS OPERATIONS

The Company operates gas stations, shops and
restaurants in service areas, as well as roadside
advertising and vehicle service businesses along the
expressways through its subsidiaries. In the past few
years, demand for these services has been growing at a
faster rate than the rate of traffic volume growth.

During the Period, benefiting from a change in operating
mode of gas stations from consigning to self-operating,
as well as increased capacities after the completion of
the current phase of service area expansion, income from
the above business operations reached Bmb1,043.4
million, representing an increase of 249.5% over 2005.




SECURITIES BUSINESS

The Company took over the management of Kinghing
Securities Co., Ltd. (£ {£FH BRI A]) onJuly 1,
2006 after participating in a successful reorganization
of the securities company during the first half of 2006,
and subseguently renamed the securities company as
“Zheshang Securities Co., Ltd.” (Fi&ESFERET L
7)) {(“Zheshang Securities”).

After the reorganization, the Company has strengthened
the risk control for Zheshang Securities and enhanced
its management quality. Meanwhile, benefitting from an
upturn of China's securities market, Zheshang Securities
has achieved better-than-expected operating results.
Income of the securities company during the second
half of the year was Rmb193.9million, while profit realized
after taxation was Rmb121.9million.

Details of the reorganization had been provided in a
circular to the shareholders of the Company dated May
18, 2006.

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

During the Period, Hangzhou Shida Highway Co., Ltd.,
a 50%-owned jointly-controlled entity of the Company
that owns and operates the 9.45km Shida Road, saw
its traffic volume increased by 17.3% over 2005 and toll
income increased by 16.4% over 2005. Profit for the
Period realized by the jointly-controlled entity was
Rmb46.7 million, representing an increase of 43.3% over
2005. The much higher rate of increase in profit for the
period was primarily due to lower-than-usual
maintenance expenditures.

Demand for gasoline products in Zhejiang Province
continued to grow substantially during the Period, leading
to a 41.3% increase in revenue over 2005 for Zhejiang
Expressway Petroleum Development Co., Ltd., a 50%-
owned associate of the Company. Profit for the Period
attributable to equity holders of the parent realized by
the associated company during the Period was Rmitx19.3
million, representing an increase of 38.5% over 2005.

JoinHands Technology Co., Ltd., a 27.582%- owned
associate of the Company, failed to pull out of a slump
in its main printing business despite improved sales for
its computer hardware and software products. Revenue
for the associated company decreased by 10.1% over
2005 during the Period, resulting in a loss attributable to
equity holders of the parent of Rmbk7.5 million,

EXPRESSWAY WIDENING PROJECT

The third and last phase of the project to widen the
Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway from four lanes
to eight lanes (the “Widening Project”) continued along
the Hangzhou-Ningbo section during the Period, with
most of the foundation and structure works finished.

The Company has taken every measure available to
minimize the impact of related construction works upen
normal traffic flow along the Hangzhou-Ningbo section.
It is expected that the section will be kept open for traffic,
though with reduced capacity, throughout the rest of
construction works until its completion by the end of
2007.

Upon compiletion of the Widening Project, the Shanghai-
Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway will be the first eight-lane
expressway in Zhejiang Province, with substantiaily
increased carrying capacity and improved quality of
service in terms of greater reliability and safer traveling
conditions.
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PROJECT INVESTMENT

On March 10, 2007, the Company entered into
agreements to acquire an aggregate of 23.45% equity
interest in Zhejiang Jinhua Yongjin Expressway Co., Ltd.
(FTEEFIHRELBAMLAH) (“Jinhua Co.”) from
the Jinhua Municipal Road Management Bureau ( & %t
M2 ERE) and Dongyang Municipal Transport
Investment Co., Ltd, (RN R BILEEB LT fora
total consideration of Rmb281.4 million in cash.

Jinhua Co. is the project company holding 100% equity
interests in the Jinhua Section (& ZEER ) of the Ningbo-
Jinhua Expressway ( A& & A8 } for a concession
period of 25 years. The Jinhua Section is a four-lane
expressway totaling 69.7km that was completed and
opened 1o traffic on December 28, 2005,

The investment in Jinhua Co. is in line with the Company’s
development strategy of further expanding its
expressway network within Zhejiang Province to capture
a greater share of growing expressway traffic and to
derive additional synergy from an expandad network.

The parent company of the Company, Zhejiang
Communications investment Group Co., Ltd., is another
substantial shareholder of Jinhua Co. with its 35% equity
interest. Pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the above acquisition is not considered as a
caonnected transaction or a discloseable transaction.

18 ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.




1998

Full opevation of the Shanghai-Hangahou- Ningbo Expressiay: Kicking off the Companys
continued gropth

1993 is A wonumental yea in which the Companys majov assets commenced cxucial development. The Shanghai-
Hnn@zkou—. j\!in@bo Expressinay came into full opevation that peay, with \Wmugsm Co incovpovated in the
same gear fov the opevation of the Shangsan Expressmway. Jo date, the mileage of expresspags under the
Company has incveased from the itial 158km to wearly 400km. Douring the geavs, the traffic volume and
toll income of the Companys expressiways have beex vising continuously with the asset scale corstantly exparding,
making the Company the orly listed Jtate-opned toll-voad opevator to post tew consecutive geavs of double-

Aiﬁi’c net profit gropth.

AANPAR V

5 g‘gﬁ - it the Su Causeway and the stond pagodas 10 stop e
Su Sh: was appointed a local official of Hangihou cturing the Yuan You Period of the Northern
Song Dynasty, when he noticed the frequent floodings of Qiantang River and Tai Hu ithe
Lake of Tai) were disastrous. Accordingly, Su persanally drafted a dredging pian ard ordered
workers to build a long causeway with rape-iurnip and silt across the lake swrface. This
causeway is the renowned Su Causeway. On the other hand, to prevent Xi Hu from being
silted again, Su Shi erected three stone pagodas at the heart of the lake, banning plantations
or farming in the water within the three stone pagodas. The three stone pagodas form the
“Three Pools Mirroring the Moon” among the famed Ten Views of Xi Hu, as weil as the Lesser
Yingzhou isle ~ one of the “Three Isles of Xi Hu”.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Group adopts a prudent financial policy with an aim
to providing shareholders with sound returns over the
long-term.

During the Period, the Group’s profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company was approximately Rmb1,652.9
million, representing an increase of 15.5% over 2005,
while earnings per share for the Group was Fmb38.06
cents.

PROFITABILITY

The compound annual growth rates of earnings per share
and return on equity in the last five years were 16.7%
and 10.9%, respectively. Details are as follows:

Year erded December 31,
002 2008 2004 2005 2006

for 32.2% {2005: 37.7%), while time deposits accounted
for 2.8% (2005: 5.5%) and short-term investments
accounted for 4.9% {2005: 31.9%).

As at December 31,

2006 2005
Rmb’000 ] Rmb'000
Cash and cash equivalents
Rmb 1,493,866 723,452
USS in Rmb equivalent 8,661 2
HK$ in Amb equivalent 1,546 59
Time deposits
Rmb 131,312 105,632
Shert term investments
Rmb 229,880 612,097
Total 1,865,265 1,441,242
Rmb 1,855,058 1,441,181
US$ in Rmb equivalent 8,661 2
HK$ in Bmb equivatent 1,546 : 59

EPS {Rmb cents) 2050 2323 2822 3295 3806
YoY Growth rate 171% 1383% 215% 168% 155%
ROE 92% 99% 11.4% 128% 13.9%
YoY Growth rate 12.2% 76% 152% 118% 87%

During the Period, the annual dividend payout ratio was
71.0%, reflecting a stable dividend payout policy that
the management maintained in past years. Details of
dividends in the last five years are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2008
[Proposed)
Dividends
{Rmb’000} 564,604 651,467 825,191 §55,485 1,172,641

Dividend payoutratic  63.4% 646% 673% 668% 71.0%

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group remained sound and
healthy during the year under review. As at December
31, 2006, current assets of the Group amounted to
Rmb4,674.3 million in aggregate (2005: Rmb 1,819.8
milliory), of which cash and cash equivalents accounted
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As at December 31, 2008, the Group had Rmb229.9
million in short-term investments that were fully
attributable to Zheshang Securities, and was invested
in the stock market.

During the Period, net cash inflow generated from the
Group's operating activities amounted to Rmb2,413.6
million, representing an increase of 21,7% over 2005.

The Directors do not expect the Company to experience
any problem with liquidity and financial resources in the
near future.

BORROWINGS AND SOLVENCY

As at December 31, 20086, the total liabilities of the Group
ware Rmb6,218.0 million, of which 29.7% were
borrowings and 40.2% were client deposits arising from
securities dealing.




The borrowings comprised mainly outstanding balances
of the World Bank loans of Rmb657 .8 milllion in Renminbi
equivalent, loans from several domestic commercial
banks totaling Rmib125.0 million and corporate bonds
amounting to BRmb1 bittion that was issued by the
Company in 2003 for a term of 10 years. Among
Rmb1,845.4 million of the Group’s total borrowings,
78.5% were not repayable within one year (2005:
Rmb2,434.7 milion and 63.6%, respectively). Details as
follows:

Maturity Profiles
2-5 years Beyond
Gross amount ~ Within 1 year inclusive 5 years

Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Renb'000 Rmb'000

Floating rates
World Bank
loan 857,807 211,761 380,503 65,543
Fixed rates
Commercial
bark lpans 125,000 125,000 - -
Govemment foans 62,600 60,380 2,220 -
Corporate bonds 1,000,000 - — 1,000,000

Totat a5 at
December 31,

2006 1,845,407 397,141 382723 1,065,343

Totalas at
Decernber 31,

2005 2,434,737 886,540 377615 1,170,682

As at December 31, 2006, the interest rates of the
Group's semi-annual and annual domestic commercial
bank borrowings, totaling Rmb125.0million, were fixed
between 5.02% and 5.58% per annum; the interest rate
for Rmb62.6 million government loans remained fixed
at 3.00% per annum; the annual coupon rate for the
Rmb1 billion corporate bonds was fixed at 4.29%, with
interest payable annually; the annual interest rate for client
deposits arising from securities dealing was fixed at
0.72%; the floating rate of the Group's Rmb657.8 million
World Bank loans, denominated in US dollar, varied from
4.51% to 5.16%.

Total interest expense for the Pericd amounted to
Rmt102.8 miilion, while profit before interest and tax
amounted to Rmb2,829.4 million. The interest cover ratio
{profit before interest and tax over interest expenses)
stood at 27.5 (2005: 22.1).

2006 2005

RAmb'000 Rmb‘000

Profit before tax and interest 2,829,399 2,371,858
Interest expenses 102,782 107,196
Interest cover ratic 275 221

The asset-liability ratio (total liabilities over total assets)
was 31.8% as at December 31, 2006 (2005: 24.2%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The total equity of the Group increased by 8.0% from
Rmb12,363.9 million as at December 31, 2005 to
Rmb13,352.5 million as at December 31, 2006. The
fixed-rate liabilities of the Group amounted to
Bmb3,689.2 million, while the floating-rate liabilities of
the Group amounted to Rmb657.8 million and the
interest-free liabilities of the Group amounted to
Rmb1,871.0 million, representing 18.9%, 3.4% and
9.6% of the Group's capital, respectively.
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s at Decernber 31, 2008 As 3t Decerber 31, 2005
Amb'000 % Rmt'000 %
Total equity 13,352,452 68.2% 12363868 75.8%
Fixed rate fabities 3,689,193 18.8% 1,702,600 10.4%
Floating rate fiabiities 657,807 34% 732,137 4.5%
Interest-hee fabtes 1,870,967 9.6% 1,513,061 9.3%
Total 19,570,419 1000% 16311656 100.0%
Long-term
interest-bearing
falities 1,448,266 7.4% 1,548,109 9.5%
Gearing ratio | (Note) 46.6% 31.9%
Gearing ratio 2 (Note) 10.8% 12.5%
Asset-ablity ratio 31.8% 204.2%

Note: Gearing ratio 1 represants the sum of fixed rate liabilities,
floating rate liabilities and interest-free liabilities to the
total equity; gearing ratio 2 represents the total amount
of the long-term interest-bearing liabilities to the total

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS AND
UTILIZATION

Total capital expenditures of the Group and of the
Company for the Period amounted to Rmb1,169.6
million and Rmb555.3 million, respectively, with
Rmb468.9 million incurred by the investment in
Zheshang Securities and Rmb485.9million incurred by
the Widening Project.

The capital expenditures committed by the Group and
by the Company as at December 31, 2006 were
Rmb3,873.3 million and Rmb2,341.1 million,
respectively. Amongst the Rmb3,873.3 million committed
by the Group, 47.1% wili be used on the Widening
Project, 28.7% will be used on the censtruction of
Jiashao Expressway and 7.3% will be used on the equity
acquisition of Jinhua Co,

equity.
As at December 31, 2006
Group Company
! Commitments Utilization Balance  Commitments Utilization Balance
Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
|
Expressway Widening Project |
From Dajing o Fengjing 2,532,514 1,719,141 813,373 - - -
From Guzhu to Duantang 2,218,118 1,208,104 1,010,014 2,218,118 1,208,104 1,010,014
Acquisition of additional |
18.4% equity interest in ;
Shangsan Co 485,000 - 485,000 485,000 - 485,000
Ofiice decoration 1,939 - 1,939 - - - !
Renovation of Service Area 49,256 - 49,256 - - - 4
Remaining construction waorks
of the Shangsan Expressway 47,667 5,700 41,967 - - -
Purchase of machinery | 80,000 - 80,000 54,340 - 54,340 |
Jiashao Expressway Project ! 1,145,375 35,000 1,110,375 1,145,375 35,000 1,110,375 i
Acquisition of 23.45% equity
interest in Jinhua Co 281,400 - 281,400 281,400 - 281,400 |
Total 8,841,269 2,967,945 3,873,324 4,184,233 1,243,104 2,941,129 J
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The Group will finance its abovementioned capital
expenditure commitments with internally generated cash
flow, with a preference for debt financing to meet any
shortfalls thereof.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

Fourteen customers of Zheshang Securities previousty
entered into state bond invesiment agency agreements
with Kinghing Trust investment Co., Ltd {*Kinghing
Investment"), whereby Zheshang Securities kept in
custody state bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
Rmb106.5 million. These state bonds were pledged as
security for certain third party repo trading transactions
and the funds cbtained were misappropriated by Kinghing
Investment. Kinghing Investment was unable to return the
misappropriated funds in time and as a result, the security
over the state bonds was enforced to settle the retevant
repo trading transactions.

In the opinion of directors, Kinghing Investment should
take full responsibility for breach of the state bond
investment agency agreements. Currently, Kinghing
Investment has ceased its cperations and its
restructuring is underway. It is understood that the 14
customers have aiready registered their claims with
Kinghing Investment's restructuring team. At the date of
this report, one of the 14 customers has started legal
proceedings against Zheshang Securities for disputes
over the state bond investment agency agreement.

After consultation with their legal advisors and other legal
experts, the directors believe that, from a fegal point of
view, Zheshang Securities should not take any legal
responsibility, whether or not all the 14 customers choose
to take them to court. However, one should not rule out
the possibility that the court may, after considering, inter
alia, Zheshang Securities role in the performance of the
state bond investment agency agreements, request
Zheshang Securities to share part of the liability. The impact
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole is not
expected to be material though should this situation arise.

In addition, a full provision has been made for guarantees
issued in respect of the state bond investrnent agency
agreements and fund trust agreements entered into
between Kinghing Investment and its corporate customers,

No provision has been made for guarantees amounting
to Rmb17.8 million issued in respect of the fund trust
agreements entered into between Kinghing Investment
and its individual customers because () these individuals
have already registered their claims with Kinghing
Investment's restructuring team; and (ii) under the
relevant state policies, these individuals are expected to
be compensated in full by the state.

Other than the aforementioned, the Group did not have
any other contingent liabilities nor any pledge of assets
as at December 31, 2006.

Other than the aforementioned, the Group did not have
any other contingent liabilities nor any pledge of assets
as at December 31, 2006.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Except for the repayment of a World Bank loan of
RmbB57.8 million in US dollars, as well as dividend
payments to overseas shareholders in Hong Kong
dollars, the Group’s principal operations are transacted
and booked in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group's
exposure 1o foreign exchange fluctuations is limited and
the Group has not entered into any financial instrurnent
for hedging purposes.

Although the Directors do not foresee any material foreign
exchange risks for the Group, there is no assurance that
any further changes in the foreign exchange environment
will not adversely affect the operating results of the Graup
in the future.
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HUMAN RESQURCES

There had been an increase in total number of employees
within the Group from 3,028 to 3,873 during the Pericd,
due primarily to the addition of Zhashang Securities Co.,
Ltd. as a subsidiary to the Company starting from Juty
1, 2006. Amongst the 3,873 employees, 732 worked in
the managerial, administrative and technical positions,
while 3,141 worked in fields such as toll collection,
maintenance, service areas and securities business
outlets.

The Company adopts a remuneration policy that aims
to be competitive for attracting and retaining talents.
Overall remuneration package for employees is mainly
comprised of basic salaries, bonuses and benefits.

Bonuses are designed to reflect individual job
performances, as well as business and share price
performances of the Group, while benefits for employees
come in the form of contributions made by the Group to
various local social security agencies covering pension,
medical and accommaodation concerns that are
calculated as a percentage of employees’ income and
in accordance with relevant rules and regulations.

To supplement the existing pension scheme, the
Company adopted a corporate annuity scheme during
the Period in accordance with relevant rules and
regulations. With the implementation of the corporate
annuity scheme, total pension cost charged to the
income statement during the Period amounted to
Rmb20.8 million.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2007

China’s economy is expected to continue with its rapid
growth in 2007 under the new focus on scientific
development and on quality over speed. As the most
economically vibrant province, Zhejiang Province will see
its GDP to continue to achieve double-digit growth in
2007, a growth rate higher than the national average
GiDP growth rate. At the same time, cars are widely used
by families, and the era of rapid growth in vehicle
consumption has arrived. There will be a substantial
increase in the total number of vehicles in China.

Owing to the positive impact of the fundamentals
mentioned above, we estimate with optimism that the
growth rates for both traffic volume and toll income on
the Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway will be
higher in 2007 than in 2006. After a gradual dissipation
cf the impact of vehicle diversion on the Shangsan
Expressway, traffic volume on the Shangsan Expressway
will also enjoy certain rebounded growth.

To meet the growing traffic flow, and following the
Company's introduction of Unionpay bankcards for the
first time in China, we will start to introduce non-stop toll
collection booths and automatic IC card issuance at
entrance boaoths in 2007, with an aim to further improve
the carrying capacity and rapid-through capabilities of
the expressways operated by the Company.

In 2007, there will be a new pair of service areas
completed and put into operation. Having grown rapidly
for three consecutive years, the Company’s non-core
business operations will continue to enjoy excelient
performance in 2007.

Following the successful reorganization of Zheshang
Securities, and benefitting from the unusually robust
performance of the Chinese stock market, Zheshang
Securities will be bringing sizable profit contributions to
the Company. However, the Company intends to
rnaintain its investment in, and operation of, expressways
ag its core business.
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The Boavd formed independent committees: Continuously enhancing covporate govevnance

(w2000, the aumber of independent non—executive divectovs of the Company has increased to one-thivd of the
membership of the Board of Wivectors. The Audit Committee, the Jtrategic Committee and the Nomination
anA Remunevation Committee peve established undev the Boavd of Divectors to ensuve that all decisions by
the “Board of Divectovs pill be to the best intevests of the shaveholdevs. ’ﬂwoughout the yeavs, Ehejimg
Expressnay has been insisting ok 4 vequlated opecation and has established an effective accountability system,
as pell as stviving to veinforee internal controls aud visk management, theveby actively enhancing the transpavency
and govevnance standavd of the Company,.
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Built the Yang Gong Causeway despite strong opposition

After the dernise of the Song Dynasty in the Yuan Dynasty’s hands, Xi Hu shared the fate of femaie beauties who were biamed for catastrophes in
times of upheavals. The Yuan rulers claimed that Song emperors neglected the State’s affairs for pleasures i Xi Hu all the time, thereby leading to
Songy's derise, Accordingly, the Yuan nulers adopted a policy of “abandon and neglect” for Xi Hu. The situation continued until early Ming Dynasty,
when the most severe silt in Xi Hu finally occurred. Uttimately, Yang Mengying, the then-governor of Hangzhou, defeated strong opposition and
overcame numerous obstacles to re-dredge Xi Hu. Yang dredged over 3,000 acres of paddy fields in the lake occupied by the rich and elevated the
Su Causaway, as well as building the Yang Gong Causeway, thereby retuming Xi Hu to its glamour in the Tang and Song dynasties.
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Report on Corporate Governance

The Board of the Company has reviewed the day-to-
day governance practices of the Company in the fiscal
year of 2006 (hereinafter referred to as the “Period") by
reference to the relevant Code provisions contained in
the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices”
(hereinaiter referred to as the “Code”"}) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and
considers that the Company has strictly complied with
all Code provisions as set out in the Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

A. DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted “Cultivation of expertise, to
create and enjoy values” as its own mission, and the
Company's best long-term financial return as its
measurement criteria. The Board represents the interests
of shareholders as a whole, leading the Company to the
continued success in its cornmercial operations.
Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the “Company
Law" and the mandate of the gereral meeting, the Board
exercises its right of making management decisions in
the development strategy, financial control, investment
and financing, management structure of the Company.
The Board ensures that the management fully discharge
their cbligations under the various changes to the
external factors, and conduct regular and effective
supervision on the implementation of policies, decisions
and strategies of the management. All the Directors can
perform prudently, faithfully and diligentty for the overall
interests of the Company both in terms of their
obligations and responsihilities and accept joint and
several rasponsibilities for all shareholders in respect of
the management and operation of the Company. The
Board has formulated the “Procedures for Directors to
Seek Independent Professional Advice™), which allows
Directors to seek independent professional advice based
on reasonable requests and under appropriate
circumstances, at the expense of the Company. The
Company has made appropriate insurance
arrangements for any legat action which may be faced
by its Directors.
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The role of the Chairman is undertaken by an Executive
Director elected by over half of all the Directors, who is
responsible for leading the Board in formulating the
Company’s major plans and policies, a good corporate
governance practice and procedure, and leads by
example to encourage all the Directors to be fully

. engaged in the business of the Board, and ensures that

the Board discusses all the key and appropriate matters
in a timely and constructive manner so that the actions
of the Board will comply with the best interests of the
Company, and enables the effective operation of the
Company. The Chairman is responsible for determining
and approving the agenda for each Board meeting,
cluring which process the Chairman will consider any
rnatter proposed by other Directors to be added to the
agenda. The Chairman authorizes the Secretary of the
Board to ensure timely provision of full information
regarding the matters to be discussed by the Board to
alt the Directors. The Chairman has adopted appropriate
measures to maintain effective communication with
shareholders, with an aim to ensure that the opinions of
shareholders are communicated to all members of the
Board. The role of the General Manager of the Company
is undertaken by another Executive Director appointed
hy the Board, whose responsibility is to implement these
plans and policies. The terms of reference of the
Chairman and the General Manager are clearly stated
and set out in a written form. Please refer to the Articles
of Association of the Company for details.

Members of the Board have extensive knowledge and
axperience in the Company’s business in respact of
development strategies, financia! and legat aspects. On
February 14, 2006, the Company convened an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”) to elect members
of the fourth session of the Board. Other than the election
of Mr. Jiang Wenyao, the Deputy General Manager who
is familiar with the Company's business, to replace the
retiring Mr. Xuan Daoguang as an Executive Director,
other Direciors remain unchanged as compared to the
third session of the Board s0 as to ensure that any
change in members of the Board will not have an
improper impact on the Company. The fourth session




of the Board is comprised of nine directors. Among them,
four are Executive Directors; and the remaining five are
Non-executive Directors, of whom three are Independent
Non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the
number of Board members. The number of Non-
exgcutive Directors has exceeded half of the total
members of the Board. They have extensive experience
in business, finance and law and can make independent
judgments effectively, and their advice to the Board had
material influence on the decision making of the Board.
in all the Company's correspondence (including the
Company’s website) bearing the names of Directors, the
full list of names of the latest Board members is provided,
indicating their roles and duties and specifying whether
they are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Company has formulated the plan for an orderly
succession by the new session of the Board as well as
formal, deliberate and transparent procedures for the
appointment of new Directors. All the Directors of the
Company are elected by the general meeting with a term
of office of three years for each session. Upon expiry of
his/her term of office, a director can be reappointed upon
re-election.

The Secretary of the Board is responsible for providing
relevant information to all Directors to ensure each of
the Directors has been able to understand his/her duties
as the Company’s Director, the way of operation,
business activities and development of the Company.
Non-executive Directors and Executive Directors have
the same status and fiduciary responsibility, and by
regularly attending meetings of the Board and committee
meetings and actively participating in their activities, have
made positive contributions to the Company with their
independent, constructive and informed opinions. On
February 14, 2008 when Mr. Jiang Wenyao first accepted
his appointment as an Executive Director, the Secretary
of the Board has provided him with specially prepared
comprehensive and formal information and professional
developments which he cught to know and is required

to know for taking up the position, so as to ensure that
he is fully aware of his duties under the common law,
the Listing Rules, applicable requirements under the laws
and other regulatory reguirements as well as the
Company’s business and governance policies.

During the Period, the Secretary of the Board has
provided all Directors with the agenda of the meeting,
together with adequate and appropriate related meeting
Information three days before any Board meeting, to
enable the Directors to make fully informed decisions
and discharge his/her duties and obligations as a
Director. All directors have made formal and informal
communications with the senior management from time
{o time during the Board meetings and other occasions.
Each of the Directors has his/her own independent
channel of contacting the senior management by himself/
herself to obtain the information he/she requires.

B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Disclosures on the remuneration of the Directors and
Supervisors are made available in the 2006 annual report
on page 74. The Company has a regulated procedure
for formulating the relevant policies of the remunerations
for the Executive Directors and determining the
remunerations of the Directors. The remuneration of the
Directors were determined at the extracrdinary general
meeting of the Company held on February 14, 2006 by
reference to the common practice and the level of
remuneration of domestic and overseas listed companies
and taking into account the scale and the growth in
results of the Company as well as competitiveness in
the market. The level of remunerations has been sufficient
to attract and retain the Directors required for the
successful operation of the Company. However, the
Company avoided to pay excessive remuneration for
such purpose. None of the Directors have participated
in determining their own remunerations.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

During the Period, the Secretary of the Board has
provided full explanations and adequate information to
all members of the Board to enable the Board to consider
the financial and other information submitted for their
approval. The Directors are responsibie for preparing the
accounts for the Period, so that the accounts can truly
and fairly reflect the position, results and cash-flow
performance of the Company’s business during the
period. When preparing the accounts for the Period, the
Directors have adopted and implemented appropriate
accounting policies, adopted the standards under “Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards”, made prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates, and prepared the
accounts on an ongeing concern basis. In the
appropriate shareholder correspondence, the Board
believes that balanced, clear and easily understandable
assessments on the Company’s situation and prospects
have been made.

The Board authorizes the management to establish and
maintain the internal contrel system, and conducts
reviews on all important control procedures such as
finance, operation, compliance and risk management
from time to time through its Audit Committee so as to
protect the Company’s assets and shareholders’
interests. Through the Audit Department, the Audit
Committee examines, supervises and evaluates the
financial position, operation and internal control activities
of the Company on a regular basis pursuant to different
businesses and flows. During this period, the audit
department of the Company organized and implemented
tests on internal contrcl and risk management, detected
and analysed the internal control situation and hidden
risks, and took relevant preventive measures to improve
the internal control system. Upon completing the
evaluation on the internal control system, the audit
department submitted the evaluation resuit to all
members of the Audit Committee for review. Meanwhile,
the Company, through the appointment of external
auditors, conducted regular audits of the Company’s
financial reports in accordance with applicable
accounting standards, and provided independent and
objective opinions and advice in the form of audit reports.
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The Board has made standardized arrangements on how
to apply the principles of financiat reporting and internal
control, and how to maintain appropriate relation with
the auditors. The Audit Committee under the Board of
the Company has laid down their written terms of
reference to comply with the Code. The relevant content
has been posted on the Company’s website in the
section headed "Corporate Governance”. During the
Period, the initial draft and final draft of the minute of
each of the meetings of the Audit Commities have been
circulated to all members of the committee within a
reasonable time after the meetings, and having obtained
comments from the members on the initial drafts, the
final drafts were kept for records. A complete record of
the meetings was maintained by the Secretary of the
Board. At present, none of the five members of the Audit
Committee were formal pariners of the Company’s
existing external auditors. The Audit Committee has
sufficient resources to perform its duties.

2. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Company has formulated a formal pre-determined
schedule in the Articles of Association specifying the
matters which specifically require decisions to be made
by the Board, in respect of which the management have
o report to the Board for approval before making the
decisions or entering into commitments on behalf of the
Company.

in order to carry out sound corporate governance, the
Company has formulated and implemented “Guidelines
on Comporate Governance”, “Terms of Reference for the
Audit Committee”, “Terms of Reference for the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee”, “Terms of
Reference for the Connected Transactions Committee”
and “Terms of Reference for the Strategy Committee” in
compliance with the Listing Rules and other relevant laws
and regulations, thereby providing each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Connected Transactions Committee and
the Strategy Committee under the Board their specific
written terms of reference, specifying the powers and
duties of these committees.




E. COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board of the Company has put emphasis on the
convening of general meetings and makes every effort
to maintain continued comrnunication with shareholders.
The Company will send the notice of the general meeting
and/or circular to both domestic and overseas
shareholders 45 days prior to the holding of the general
meeting, specifying the matters to be considered at the
meeting and the voting procedure in compliance with
the “Listing Rules” and the Articles of Association. During
the Period, the Chairman has attended all general
meetings, whereat a separate resolution in respect of
each separale matter was passed, and has made
arrangements for the scrutineer, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants, 1o supervise the
relevant voting by shareholders. Results of the general
meatings were published in Hong Kong newspapers on
the first business day after the meetings, and were
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the “Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers” under Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules (hereinafter referred to as "Model Codg”)
as well as taking into account the actual situation of the
Company, the Company has formulated its own “Rules
an Security Dealings”, with standards not less exacting
than the “Model Code”.

Upon specific enquiries to all the Directors, the Directors
have confirmed their respective compliance with the
relevant standards for securities transactions by directors
as set out in the Mode!l Code and the “Rules on Security
Dealings” of the Company in the Pericd.

BOARD

On 14 February 2006, the Company held the EGM at
which the fourth session of the Board was elected. The
fourth session of the Board of the Company comprised
nine members, including four Executive Directors, namely
Mr, Geng Xiaoping (Chairman), Mr. Fang Yunti, Mr. Zhang

Jingzhong and Mr. Jiang Wenyao; two Non-executive
Directars, namely Ms. Zhang Luyun and Ms. Zhang Yang;
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tung Chee Chen, Mr. Zhang Junsheng and Mr. Zhang
Liping.

The Board of the Company has held six meetings during
the Period. The following were attendance rates of all
Directors at Board meetings (including appointing other
directors to attend):

Attendance/Total

Member of the Board number of meetings

Geng Xiaoping {Chairman) 6/6

Fang Yunti 5/6
Zhang Jingzhong 6/6
Jiang Wenyao 5/6
Zhang Luyun 6/6
Zhang Yang 5/6
Tung Chee Chen 6/6
Zhang Junsheng 6/6
Zhang Liging 6/6

The Board has regularty held meetings during the Period.
Ad hoc meetings were held as necessary. The Company
has issued letters of enquiry to all the Directors for their
comments on the agenda seven days before the issue
of notices of Board meetings, so as to ensure that they
would have the cpportunity to raise additional matters
for inclusion in the agenda. The Secretary of the Board
issued notice of meeting to all the Directors, Supervisors
and participating members fourteen days prior to the
convening of each regular Board meeting (seven days
prior to the convening of an ad hoc meeting), so as to
allow all the Directors and other participating members
to make reasonable arrangements to attend the meeting.
The Secretary of the Board has provided the agenda of
the meeting and adequate related board papers to all
the Directors, Supervisors and participating members
three days before the convening of each Board meeting,
50 as to ensure the Directors could make an informed
decision cn the matters to be discussed. After the
completion of the regular Board mesting, the Company
has sent the initial draft and final draft of the minutes to
all the Directors; the initial draft to seek comments from
the Directors, and the final draft for records. The minutes
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of the Board and committee meetings contained
sufficient detailed recards on the matters considered by
the Directors at the meetings and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Board or dissenting
views expressed by the Directors. The Secretary of the
Board has maintained full records of the meetings of the
Board and committees, which would be avaitable for
inspection by any Director during working hours. All the
Directors have had access to the advice and services of
the Secretary of the Board, who was available at all times
for enguiries in respect on any matters (including the
application and execution of the Code), so as to ensure
the Board procedures and all the applicable rules and
regulations were complied with. The Board and the
management made decisions on the matters of the
Company within their respective scope of duties in
accordance with Articles 92 and 105 in the Articles of
Association.

The Company has complied with the requirements under
Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules, and the Board
has appointed three Independent Non-executive
Cirectors, with at least one possessing the appropriate
professional qualification or with accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the listing Rules, the company
has spectally inquired all three Independent Non-
executive Directors and received their respective
confirmation of Independence. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have confirmed their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Period. The Company still considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be Independent.

There were ne relationship between the members of the
Board {including the Chairman and the General
Manager), including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships.

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE GENERAL
MANAGER

The Company's Chairman and General Manager have
different roles which are assumed by Mr. Geng Xiaoping
and Mr. Fang Yunti respectively.

TERM OF SERVICE OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

lzach of the Non-executive Directors of the fourth session
of the Board has a term of service for three years, from
March ¥, 2006 to February 28, 2008.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS

The Board has a Nomination and Remuneration
Sommittee, mainly responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations for the selection standards and
procedures for Directars, General Manager and other
senior managermernt of the Company; identifying quialified
candidates and making reviews and recommendations
thereon; and determining, supervising and monitoring
the implementation of the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management personnel. For the
details of its terms of reference, please refer to the
“Corporate Governance” section in the Company’s web
site. The Nomination and Remuneration Cormmittee has
sufficient resources for performing its duties.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zhang Liping, Mr. Tung Chee Chen and Mr.
Zhang Junsheng. Mr. Zhang Liping was the chairman.

During the Period, the Nomination and Remunaration
Committee did not hold any meeting.




REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

During the Period, the Company has paid HK$1,384,500
{equivalent to approximately Rmi1,426,300) to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants {Hong
Kong auditors} in respect of audit services for 2005, and
Rmb610,000 to Zhejiang Pan China Certified Public
Accountants (domestic auditors) in respect of audit
services for 2005, which totaled approximately
Rmb2,036,300. The Company has no other material
non-audit service expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has an Audit Committee which is mainly
responsible for providing advice to the Board regarding
the appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditors; the supervision of the integrity of the Company's
financial statements and annual reports and accounts,
half-yearly reports, and the review of important opinions
in relation to financial reporting as set out in statements
and reports; and the review of the Company’s financial
control, internal control and risk management system.
The Audit Committee comprised five Non-executive
Birectors, three of whom were Independent Non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Tung Chee Chen, Mr.
Zhang Junsheng and Mr. Zhang Liping; and the
remaining two were Non-executive Directors, namely Ms,
Zhang Luyun and Ms. Zhang Yang. Mr. Tung Chee Chen
was the chairman of the Audit Commitiee.

During the Period, the Audit Committee held three
rmeetings. The following were the attendance rates of
the members {including appointing other members to
attend):

Attendance/Total
number of mestings

Member of the
Audit Committee

Tung Chee Chen {Chairman) 3/3

Zhang Junsheng 3/3
Zhang Liping 3/3
Zhang Luyun 3/3
Zhang Yang 3/3

On February 20, 2006, the Audit Commitiee heid the
first meeting of the third session of the Committee, and
considered and agreed to the appointment of the person
in charge of the audit department. On April 25, 2006,
the Audit Committee held the second meeting of the
third session of the Committee, and considered the
audited financial statements for 2005, the audit reports
for 2005 and the audit plans for 2006, and considered
and agreed to the proposals by the Board to the annual
general meeting on the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants Hong
Kong as the Company’s Hong Kong auditors and the
re-appointment of Zhejiang Pan China Centified Pubiic
Accountants as the Company’s PRC auditors, and the
authorization upon the Board of the Company to
determine their remuneration. On August 28, 2006, the
Audit Committee held the third meeting of the third
session of the Commiittee, and considered the interim
{unaudited) financial statements for 2006, the internal
audit report for 2006, the amendment to the “Terms of
Reference for Audit” and changing the person in charge
of the audit department. Apart from the above, the Audit
Committee also examined and supervised the work of
the audit department by reviewing quarterty audit reponts.

During the Period, the Company has complied with the
requirements on the compaosition of audit committees
as set out in Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed their
responsibility for preparing the accounts.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the way to
convene an extracrdinary general meeting of the
shareholders is: two or more shareholders (in aggregate
holding Shares in the Company with over 10% (inclusive)
of the voting rights in the meeting to be held) to request
in writing to the Board by signing one or more forms
with similar contents, ‘for convening an extraordinary
general meeting, and specifying the agenda of the
meeting. Upon receipt of the request in writing, the Board
shall convene the extraordinary general meeting as soon
as possible.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

Pursuant to the new "Company Law” coming into effect
on January i, 2008,the Company made amendments
to Articles 3,145,148,149,151,153 and 182 in the
Articles of Association at the annual general meeting held
on June 14, 2006. For details of the amendments, please
refer to the shareholders’ circular sent by the Company
on April 29, 2006.

The Company's shares comprised Domestic Shares and
H Shares. The Domestic Shares were held by Zhgjiang
Comrmunications Investments Group Co., Ltd. as to
2,432,500,000 Shares and by Huajian Transportation
Economic Development Center as to 476,760,000
Shares, representing 56% and 11% of the total
shareholding respectively. The H Shares were held by
overseas investors, with a total shareholding of
1,433,854,500 Shares, representing 33% of the total
shareholding. For details of the substantial sharehotders
holding more than 5% of the Company’s H shares, please
refer to the annual report for this year on page 42.

The latest general meeting of the Company was held on
November 16, 2006 at 12th Floor, Block A, Dragon
Century Plaza, 1 Hangda Road, Hangzhou, and
considered the interim dividend proposal ptan for 20086.
Following voting by the shareholders attended by proxy,
the meeting approved the payment of an interim dividend
of Bmb0.07 per share for the six months ended June
30, 2006, representing approximately 44% of the
earnings per share for the same period, with
3,5651,556,925 shares voted in the affirmative
{representing 100% of the total votes at the meeting),
and O shares voted against.

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.

The Company will hold its 2006 AGM on June 11, 2007
to consider the resolutions in respect of the 2006 audited
financial statements, 2006 profit distribution plan, and
20086 Report of the Directors,

As at the end of the period, the Company’s market
capitalization held by the public amounted to
HK$8,545,772,820.

The Company has always viewed its relationship with
investors as a relationship of great importance, especially
with regard to the communications with minority
shareholders. During the Period, the Company enabled
investors to ¢learly understand the Company’s operation
situation and development prospects through timely and
accurate announcements, active participations in various
investors® forums, regular performance of global
roadshows, and hosting company visits for analysts and
fund managers. Through such communications,
concerns and proposals of investors could be eiffectively
transmitted to the management, thereby enabling the
management to create better values to shareholders.

The Company will be devoted to maintaining such
relationship with investors, maintaining the smooth
communication channel between the management and
investors, and to continue satisfying demands of
investors through incessant efforts.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The management functions of the Board and the
management are specifically stipulated in Articles 92 and
105 in the Articles of Association. Details of the Articles
of Association can be obtained on the Company's
website under the section headed "Corporate
Governance”.




i 6( - V\% DU V\dg]lj - Sun Gai:

Built the Mid-Lake Pavilion, adding ancther great scenery

During the Jia Jing Period of the Ming Dynasty, Sun Gal, the then-governor ot Hangzhou,
built the Mid-Lake Pavilion with soil at the former site of the northern pagoda of the thres
pagodas built by Su Shi, in order to resolve Xi Hu's floods, The Mid-Lake Pavilion is the
biggest pavition in Xi Hu, narmed for its location at the centre of the whole lake. As the pavilion
is located at the centre of Xi Hu, the pavilion commands the entire view of the surrounding
beautiful lake and hills, Accordingly, it is named “A Panorama from the Heart of Xi Hu” amang
the “18 Views of Xi Hu™.

2003

Development Co established: “Focusing o the development of expresspay-velated business
opevations

W 2003, Zhejiang Expressmay established Development Co to facilitate the development of expressnay-
velated business opevations, suck As sevuice Aveas, petvol stations and vehicle sevvice, so As to provide voad
usevs pith better and comprehensive ancillavy sevvices while expanding the vevenue base of the Company.
Jince its inception, the Company has been continuously improving the facilities and sevvices of expressnays

to create a comfortable, safe and efficient traffic envivoument fov voad usevs,
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DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GENG Xiaoping, born in 1948, is the Chairman of
the Company. Mr. Geng graduated from the East China
College of Political Science and Law in 1984, From 1979
to 1991, he held various positions at the People's
Procuratorate of Zhejiang Province including Secretary,
Divisicn Chief and Deputy Procurator. In 1991, he was
appointed as Deputy Director of the Zhejiang Provincial
Expressway Executive Commission where he was
responsible for the business operation and administration
of the expressway system in Zhejiang Province. Mr. Geng
was the General Manager and Chairman of the Company
from March 1997 to March 2002. Since December 2001,
he has been appointed as a Director and General
Manager of the Communications Investment Group, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. He resigned
from the office of the General Manager of the Company
in March 2002. Mr. Geng is also serving as a Senior
Advisor to Zheshang Securities.

Mr. FANG Yunti, born in 1950, is a Senior Engineer, an
Executive Director and the General Manager of the
Company responsible for the overall management of the
Company. Mr. Fang graduated from Tsinghua University
in 1976 majoring in automotive engineering. From 1983
to 1988, he was the Deputy General Manager of Zhejiang
Province Automohile Transport Company. From 1988
to 1890, he was the Chief Engineer at the Provincial
Road Transport Company. During the period from 1991
to 1996, he was the Deputy Chiet and Chief of the
Operating Administrative and Technical Equipment
Divisions of the Zhejiang Provincial Expressway Executive
Commission, where his responsibilities included
operation management and equipment management in
relation 1o the Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway.
Mr. Fang was an Executive Director and the Deputy
General Manager of the Company from March 1997 to
March 2002. Since March 2002, he has been an
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Executive Director and the General Manager of the
Company. Mr. Fang also holds Chairmanships at Jiaxing
Co., Shangsan Co., Development Co., Zheshang
Securities, and Directorship at Yuhang Co., each a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. ZHANG Jingzhong, born in 1963, is a Senior
Lawyer, an Executive Director and Company Secretary
of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Zhejiang
University {previously known as Hangzhou University) in
July 1984 with a bachelor's degree in law. In 1984, he
joined the Zhejiang Provincial Political Science and Law
Policy Research Unit. From 1988 to 1994, he was the
Associate Director of Hangzhou Municipal Foreign
Economic Law Firm. In 1992, he obtained the
qualifications required by the regulatory authorities in
China to practice securities law. In January 1994, Mr.
Zhang became a Senior Partner at T&C Law Firm in
Hangzhou. Mr. Zhang has been an Executive Director
of the Company since April 1997, and was appointed
Deputy General Manager in March 2002. Since March
2003, he has been the Company Secretary. Mr. Zhang
also serves as Director at Shangsan Co., Development
Co., and Vice Chairman at Zheshang Securities.

Mr. JIANG Wenyao, born in 1966, is the Deputy General
Manager of the Company. Mr. Jiang graduated from
Zhejiang University, majoring in industrial automation and
manufacturing mechanics, and obtained a master's
degree in engineering. From March 1991 to February
1997, he worked in the Engineering Division and the
Planming and Finance Division of the Zhejiang Provincial
Expressway Executive Commission. He joined the
Company since March 1997, and has served as Deputy
Manager of the General Department, Manager of the
Equipment Department, Manager of the Operation
Department, Assistant General Manager and Company
Secretary. Mr. Jiang also serves as a director and General
Manager at Development Co., and Director at Yuhang
Co., both subsidiaries of the Company.




NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHANG Luyun, born in 1961, is a Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Communications
Investment Group. Ms. Zhang graduated from Zhejiang
University, majoring in administration and managemert.
From 1983 te 1997, she served as the Secretary, Deputy
Chief and Chief of the Office of Hangzhou City
Government. In 1997, she was the Deputy President of
Hangzhou Broadcasting and TV College and received
the title of the Assistant Researcher in college-teaching.
She joined the Communications Investment Group in
December 2001 and has been a Director and Deputy
General Manager of the Communications Investment
Group since then.

Ms. ZHANG Yang, born in 1964, is the Assistant General
Manager and the Manager of the Securities Department
of Hugjian, a substantial shareholder of the Company. In
1987, she graduated from Lanzhou University with a
bachelor's degree in economics. In 2001, she completed
the postgraduate studies in ecanomics management at
the Central Party School. From 1987 to 1994, she
worked for the Ministry of Aviation. Ms. Zhang is currently
a Non-exscutive Director of Shenzhen Expressway
Company Limited, Sichuan Expressway Company
Limited and Xiamen Port Development Company
Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TUNG Chee Chen, born in 1942, is the Chairman
of Orient Overseas (International) Limited, an
Independent Non-executive Director, a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Tung was educated at the University of Liverpool,
England, where he received his bachelor's degree in
science. He later obtained a master's degree in

mechanical engineering at the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology in the United States. Mr. Tung has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since March 1997. In addition, Mr. Tung also holds
directorships in the following listed public companies:
Chairman {Executive Director) of Orient Overseas
(International) Limited, and as an Independent Non-
executive Director of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited,
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, PetroChina Company
Limited, Sing Tao News Corporate Limited and U-Ming
Maring Transport Corp.

Mr. ZHANG Junsheng, born in 1936, is a Professor, an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Zhejiang University in 1958, and was a
Lecturer, an Associate Professor, and an Advising
Professor at Zhejiang University. He was also a Professor
concurrently at, amongst other universities, Zhongshan
University. In 1980, he became the Deputy General
Secretary of Zhejiang University, In 1983, Mr. Zhang
served as the Deputy General Secretary in the Hangzhou
City Government. In 1985, he hegan to work for the
Xinhua News Agency, Hong Kong Branch, and became
its Deputy Director since July, 1987. Since September
1998, Mr. Zhang has taken up the position of General
Secretary of Zhejiang University. In addition, Mr. Zhang
is currently a Special Advisor to the Zhsjiang Provincial
Government, a Director to the Zhejiang Province
Economic Development Consultation Committee, a
Chairman of Zhejiang University Development
Committee, an Honcrary Doctor of Science of the City
University of Hong Kong, an Honorary Academician of
Asian Knowledge Management Association and an
Henorary Professor of Canadian Chartersd Institute of
Business Administration. Mr, Zhang has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since March 2000,
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Mr. ZHANG Liping, born in 1958, is a Managing Director
of Credit Suisse and Country Head of China. He is an
Independent Non-executive Director, a member of the
Audit Committee and the Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Univarsity of International
Business & Economics of Beijing and received a master's
degree in international affairs and international laws from
St. John's University in New York. He also attended New
York University’s MBA program. Mr. Zhang held a number
of senior positions at other organizations, including CEC
of Imagi International Holdings Limited, Managing
Director of Pacific Concord Holdings Limited, Managing
Director and Geographic Head - Greater China Region,
Dresdner Banking Group, and Dirsctor of the Investment
Banking Division and China Chief Representative of
Merrill Lynch Co. & Inc. Mr. Zhang has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since March 2003.

SUPERVISORS
SUPERVISOR REPRESENTING SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. MA Kehua, born in 1852, is a Senior Economist
and the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee. Mr.
Ma graduated from Shanghai Railway Institute in 1977,
after which he worked as an Engineer at Shanghai
Railway Bureau No.1 Construction Company and the
Plumbing and Electricity Section of Shanghai Railway
Bureau, Hangzhou Branch. Mr. Ma was in charge of the
Planning and Finance Division at the Zhejiang Local
Railway Company, and in 1993 became the Deputy
Division Chief and Division Chief of Zhejiang Jinwen
Railway Executive Commission responsible for materials
supply. Mr. Ma took up the post of Deputy General
Manager of Zhejiang Provincial High Class Highway
Investment Company Limited in June 1999, and is
currently the Deputy General Manager of the
Communications Investment Group.
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SUPERVISOR REPRESENTING EMPLOYEES

Mr. FANG Zhexing, born in 19685, is a Senior Enginger,
the Manager of the Human Resources Department of
the Company. He is also the Chairman of Hangzhou
Shida Expressway Co., Ltd., a jointly controlled entity of
the Company. Mr. Fang graduated from Zhejiang
University where he received a master’s degree in
engineering. From 1986 to 1988 he was the Assistant
Engineer in the Project Management Office of the Electric
Power and Water Congervancy Bureau in Taizhou. From
1991 until 1997, he was the Engineer in the Project
Management Office of Zhejiang Provincial Expressway
Executive Commission, where he participated in the
project management of Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo
Expressway. Since March 1987, he has served as the
Deputy Manager and the Manager of the Planning and
Development Department, the Manager of the Project
Development Department, the Director of Quality
Management Office and the Director of Internal Audit
Department of the Company.

INDEPENDENT SUPERVISORS

Mr. ZHENG Qihua, born in 1963, is a Senior Accountant
and an independent non-executive member of the
Supervisory Committes of the Company. Mr. Zheng was
among the first batch of Chinese registered accountants
who obtained qualifications required for practicing
accountancy involving securities in 1992. He has working
and training experience in Hong Kong and Singapore,
and he worked with the Listing Division of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission during 1997 and
1998. He was a member of the Sixth Session of the
Listing Review Board of the China Securities and
Regulatory Commission in 2004. He is currently the
Deputy General Manager of Zhejiang FPan-China Certified
Public Accountants and a guest professor at Zhejiang
(Gongshang University and Zhejiang Finance &
Economics Institute.




Mr. JIANG Shaozhong, born in 19486, is a Professor.
Mr. Jiang graduated from the Management Department
of Zhejiang University with a master’s degree. Frorm 1982,
he worked in the Management Department of Zhejiang
University as Lecturer, Assistant Professor, Professor,
Dean of Research Office and Deputy Dean of the
Department. From 1984 to 1985, he was a visiting
scholar at Stanford University. From 1991 to 1998 he
was the Deputy General Economist, the Chief of the
Financial Division, the Chief of the Teaching Division and
the Deputy Manager of the Management Department of
Zhejiang University. He is currently the Deputy General
Accountant of Zhejiang University.

Mr. WU Yongmin, born in 1983, is an Assistant
Professor. Mr. Wu graduated from China University of
Political Science and Law with a master’s degree. He
was the Deputy Dean of the Department of Law at
Hangzhou University, Deputy Dean of the Department
of Law at Zhejiang University’s Law School, and Director
of Zheda Law Firm. Mr. Wu studied at the Christian-
Albrachts-Universit &t zu Kiel in 1996 as a visiting scholar.
He is currently the Acting Dean of the Department of
Law at the Law School of Zhejiang University, a
Supervisor for master's degree candidates in Business
Law, a member of China Business Law Research
Council, Deputy Director of Zhejiang Tax Law Research
Council, an Arbitrator of Hangzhou Arbitration
Committee, and a Lawyer at Zhejiang Zeda Law Firm.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MEMBERS

Mrs. HUANG Qiuxia, bornin 1956, an economist, and
is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mrs.
Huang graduated from Hangzhou Non-professional
Technology lJniversity in 1988 majoring in Human
Resource Management. From 1976 to 1991, she was

the Deputy Chief of Labor Division of Hangzhou Clock
and Watch Factory. She joined the Zhejiang Provincial
Expressway Executive Commission in August 1991, and
was involved in matters related to labor wages,
personne!, external affairs etc. During the period from
March 1997 to February 2003, she was the Deputy
Manager and Manager of General Department of the
Company. Mrs. Huang also serves as Director and
Deputy General Manager at Jiaxing Co.

Mr. PAN Jiaxiang, bornin 1951, an engineer, and is the
Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. Pan
graduated from Hangzhou University, majoring in
economic management. From 1987 to 1992, he was
the Deputy Director of the Office of Shangyu City People’s
Government, and at the same time served as the Director
of the Executive Commission of the Shanghai-
Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway (Shangyu Section). From
January 1993 to April 1996, he was the Director and
the Secretary of Party Committee of Shangyu City
Communications Bureau. He has worked in the
Company since April 1997, and served as Deputy
Manager of Maintenance Department, Assistant of the
General Manager and Director and Chief Supervisory
Engineer of Widening Project Office, and General
Manager of Shangsan Co. Mr. Pan is also serving as a
Director at Zheshang Securities.

Mr. WU Junyi, born in 1969, a holder of master degree
in accounting, and is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. Wu graduated from Xi'an Communications
University in 1996. From 1996 to 1997, he was with the
China Investment Bank, Hangzhou Branch. He joined
the Company in May 1897, and has served as Manager
of Securities Investment Department and Manager of
Planning and Finance Department. Mr, Wu is also serving
as a Director at Shangsan Co.
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Major povks of the Phase [l idening Project completed: Meeting the demand from continued
tvatfic gropth

ln 2006, the Company completed all the key construction wovks of the Phase HI M)idmiuﬂ Project on the
Shanghai-Hanghou- Ningbo Expressmay, theveby {ully geaving up itself for the {ull opevation of the
province's {ivst I-tane expresspay. Meanghile, the wovks completion also alloped the Compang to Assume A
wove {mpovtant vole amony p(&kﬁjirf\ﬁﬁls expresspay operators while meeting the demand from Avoning vehicle

tratfic in the provice.

@im_b) Dy mgmlﬂ R

Built the Ruan Gong Mound, founding a public library to promote Han Studies

The third isle of the “Three Isles of Xi Hu" was formed during the Jia Qing Period of the Qing
Dynasty when Ruan Yuan, the imperial inspector of Zhejiang, adopted the method of the
Song Dynasty's Su Shi to dredge the lake and form the isle with the silt dredged. The isle is

named Ruan Gong Mound, and Is known as “Ruan Gong Islet Submerged in Greenery”
among the “Ten New Yiews of Xi Hu", As the imperial inspector of Zhejiang, Ruan Yuan not
only repaired local sceneries and relics and dredged Xi Hu, but also promoted the Han School
of Chinese Classics Studies and established the “Lingyin Collection” - the earliest public
library of Zhejiang Province. For. his accomplishments, Ruan was honored as a “Master of
Classics” who mast%«ad aft the Slx?«?fs




Report of the Directors

The Directors of the company hereby present their report
and the audited financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended December 31, 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group comprise the
investment, operation, maintenance and management
of high grade roads, as well as development and
operation of certain ancillary services, such as technical
consultation, advertising, automobile servicing and fuel
facilities. There were no changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Curing the year, the entire revenue and contribution to
profit from operating activities of the Group were derived
from the Zhejiang Province in the People’'s Republic of
China ("PRC"). Accordingly, a further analysis of the
revenue and contribution to profit from operating activities
by geographical area is not presented. However, an
analysis of the Group's revenue and contribution to profit
from operating activities by principal activity for the year
ended December 31, 2006 is set out in note 6 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended December 31, 2006
and the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 48 to 96.

An interim dividend of Rmb0.07 per share {approximatety
HK$0.07) was paid on November 30, 2006. The
Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
Rmb0.20 (approximately HK$0.20) in respect of the year,
to shareholders whose names appeared on the register
of members of the Company on May 17, 2007. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial
statements as an allocation of retained earnings within
the capital and reserves section in the balance sheet.
Further details of the dividends are set out in note 13 to
the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results, and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests of
the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes below.

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Results Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Amb'000 Rmb'00Q Rmb'000
{restated) {restated) (restated)
REVENUE 4,763,780 3,456,385 3,131,893 2,471,805 2,168,078
Operating costs (2,076,670) (1,195,428) {881,355) (731,451) (561,918)
Total profit 2,687,110 2,260,957 2,250,638 1,740,354 1,606,160
COther income 203,952 185,947 41,646 127,285 66,457
Administrative expenses (71,022) (62,766) {74,506) (114,629) {95,209}
Other expenses (32,901) (41,835) {243,823) (54,243) (33,109)
Finance costs (71,991) {101,343) {103,457) (132,801) (163,224)
Share of profit of associates 4,435 7.217 9,086 12,509 10,009
Share of profit of
a jointly-controlled entity 23,344 16,285 19,622 8,894 686
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2,742,927 2,264,662 1,889,206 1,587,369 1,391,770
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (884,036) (692,368) {542,749) (491,348) (398,251)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,858,891 1,572,296 1,356,457 1,096,023 993,519
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 1,652,671 1,431,192 1,225,699 1,008,792 890,452
Minority interests 206,020 141,104 130,758 87,231 103,067
EARNINGS PER SHARE 38.06 cents 32.95 cents 28.22 cents 23.23 cents 20.50 cents
As at December 21,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Assets and liabilities Rmb'000 Amb’'000 Rmb'000 Bmb'000 Rmb'000
(restated) (restated) [restated)
Total asseis 19,570,419 16,311,856 15,465,649 15,088,687 14,505,834
Total liabilities (6,217,967) {3,947,788) (3,653,143} (3.910,291) (3,826,254)
Net assets 13,352,452 12,363,868 11,812,506 11,158,396 10,679,580
Notes:

1.  The consolidated resutts of the Group for the four years ended December 31, 2005 have been extracted from the Company's
2005 annual report dated Apr! 25, 2006, while those of the year ended December 31, 2006 were prepared based on the
consolidated income statement as set out on page 48 of the financial statements.

2. The 2006 earnings per share is based on the net profit from ordinary activities attributable to sharehclders for the year ended
December 31, 2006 of Rmb1,652,871,000 (2005: Rmb1,431,192,000) and the 4,343,114,500 ordinary shares (2005:
4,343,114,500 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.
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3. Differences in Financial Statements prepared under PRC GAAP and HKFRSs
Net profit Net assets as at
before minority interests December 31,
1‘ 2006 ! 2005 ‘ 2006 ‘i 2005
! Amb’000 } Rmb000 RmMb'000 | Rmb’000
As reported in 1he statutory financial statements ‘t & ! ‘
of the Group prepared in accordance i ! i
with PRC GAAP i 1,727,477 ! 1,644,952 12,039,846 11,432,913
HK GAAP adjustments: I ' ‘
(a2} Goodwill 3 76,176 ! 45970 {93,751) | (65,871)
(b) Depreciafion provided, net of deferred tax ! 7,840 } 4,992 (189,658) E (196,214)
{¢) Deterred iax assets on disposal of ; } ‘
fixed assets E — (38.319) - -
{d) Difference in the share premium account i "
during astablishment | - - 11,823 ‘ 11,623
(&) Restatement of short term investrents in 1 |
securities At market value, i ‘
net of dleferred tax | 28,229 14,568 34,296 18,678
(i  General provision on accounts receivable ‘ i
and other debts 9,851 162 11,120 | 1,732
() Assessment on impact of appreciation, [
net of deferred tax | 3,068 - 85,847 -
(i Others | 6,250 (29) (6.319) ; (7,243)
()  Minority interests } - - 1,459,148 | 1,167,950
As restated in the financial statements i 1,858,891 |r 1,572,296 13,352,452 'r 12,363,868

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of
the total turnover and purchases, respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company has entered into a
continuing connected transaction with its subsidiary and
a fellow subsidiary, details of which are set out in note
44 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, MACHINERY AND PLANT

Details of movements in property, machinery and plant
of the Company and the Group during the year are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Company and
the Group as at December 31, 20086 are set out in note
41 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
51 to the financiat statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2008, befors the proposed final
dividend, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution by way of cash or in kind, as determined
based on the lower of the amount determined under
PRC accounting standards and the amount determined
under HK GAAP, amounted to Rmb1,076,321,000. In
addition, in accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC, the amount of approximately Rmb3,645,726,000
standing to the credit of the Company’s share premium
account as prepared in accordance with the PRC
accounting standards was available for distribution by
way of capitalisation issues.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2008, the following shareholders
held 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company according to the register of interests in shares

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO™):

Percentage of
share capital
Name Number of shares (domestic shares)
Zhejiang Communications
Investment Group
Co., Ltd. 2,432,500,000 83.61%
iHuajian Transportation
Eccnomic Development
Center 476,760,000 16.39%
Percentage of
share capital
Name Number of shares {H shares)
Bailie Gifford & Co. 216,677,200 15.11%
Aberdeen Asset
Management PLC
and its Assoclates 206,964,000 14.43%
The Children’s Investment
Master Fund 132,354,000 9.23%
Mondrian Investment
Partners Ltd. 121,248,000 8.46%
JP Morgan Chase & Co. 115,796,817 8.08%

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2006, no
person had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.




PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, and to the best of the
Directors” knowledge, 100% of the H shares of the
Company, which accounts for approximately 33% of all
issused capital of the Company, are held by the public.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
THE LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or seold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

TRUST DEPOSITS

As at December 31, 2008, other than the deposits of
Rmb35,122,228 placed in non-bank financial institutions
in the PRC, the Group did not have any trust deposits,
nor any time deposits with any non-bank financial
institution in the PRC. Nearly all of the Group’s deposits
have been placed with commercial banks in the PRC
and the Group has not encountered any difficulty in the
withdrawal of funds.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Geng Xiaoping

Mr. Fang Yunti

Mr. Zhang Jingzhong

Mr. Xuan Daoguang (term expired on February 28, 2006)
Mr. Jiang Wenyao {appointed on March 1, 2006)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Zhang Luyun
Ms. Zhang Yang

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tung Chee Chen

Mr. Zhang Junsheng

Mr. Zhang Liping

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The extraordinary general meeting held on February 14,
2006 resolved to re-elect Mr. Geng Xiaoping, Mr. Fang
Yunti, Mr. Zhang Jingzhong, Ms. Zhang Luyun, Ms.
Zhang Yang, Mr. Tung Chee Chen, Mr. Zhang Junsheng
and Mr. Zhang Liping, and to newly elect Mr. Jiang
Wenyao, as members of the fourth session Board of
Directors. The extraordinary general meeting also
resolved to re-slect Mr, Ma Kehua, Mr. Zheng Qihua and
Mr. Jiang Shaozhong, and to newly elect Mr. Wu
Yongmin, as members of the fourth session Supervisory
Committee.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
the senior management of the Group are set out on page
34 in the Company’s annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors (“Supervisors™) of
the Company has entered into a service agreement with
the Company, with effect from March 1, 2008, for a term
of three years.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and
Supervisors has entered into any service contract with
the Company which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

As at December 31, 2006 or during the year, none of
the Directors or Supervisors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2006, the interests of the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives in the share capital of
the Company’s associated corporations (within the

meaning of Part XV of the SFQ), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers were as follows:

Interest in the shares of Zhejiang Expressway Investment Development Co., Ltd.

Percentage of the

Contribution of registered capital

registered capital of associated

Name Position (Rmb) Nature of interest corporation
Mr. Geng Xiaoping Chairman 2,400,000 Directly 3.00%

beneficially owned
Mr. Fang Yunti Director/General Manager 1,920,000 Same as above 2.40%
Mr. Jiang Wenyao Director 1,320,000 Same as above 1.65%
Mr. Zhang Jingzhong Director 1,100,000 Same as above 1.38%
Mr. Fang Zhexing Supenrvisor 700,000 Same as above 0.88%
Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2008, SHARE CAPITAL

none of the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives
had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
undenying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFQ), or as be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Mode! Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO
SUBSCRIBE FOR SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were there rights o acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director,
Supervisor and chief executive or their respective spouse
or minor chifdren, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable any such persons to acquire such
rights in any other bady corporats.

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY COQ., LTD.

There ware no movements in the Company's issued
share capital during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights in the
Company's Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC
which would require the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

UNITED KINGDOM TAXATION

The following paragraphs are intended as a general quide
only and are based on current legislation and HM
Revenue & Customs practice. If you are in any doubt as
1o your tax position, you should consult an appropriate
professional adviser without delay.

Individual holders of H Shares who are resident and
domiciled in the United Kingdom (the “UK"} will, in
general, be liable ta UK income tax on dividends received
from the Company. Where such an individual receives
dividends from the Company without withholding of taxes
in the PRC, the amount included as income for the




purpose of computing his or her UK tax liability is the
gross amount of the dividend and this is taxed at the
appropriate marginal rate {currently 10% up to the basic
rate unit and 32.5% above the basic rate unit). Where
1ax is withheld from the dividend, the individual will be
entitled to claim credit against UK income tax for any
tax withheld from the dividend up to the amount of the
UK income tax liability, The Company would assume
responsibility for withholding tax at source within the PRC
if such a withholding is required. The current UK-Chinese
Double Taxation Agreement provides that the maximum
withholding tax on dividends from Chinese resident
companies paid to UK residents is 10% of the gross
dividend.

Individual holders of H Shares who are resident but not
domiciled in the UK will only be tiable to income tax on a
dividend from the Company to the extent that the
dividend is remitted to the UK.

A UK tax resident corporate shareholder will, in general,
be liable to UK corporation tax on dividends received
from the Company, with double tax relief available for
withholding tax suffered. in certain cases (nhot tc be
discussed here), a holder of H Shares which is a UK tax
resident company may be entitied to relief for “underlying”
tax paid by the Company or its subsidiaries.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
throughout the year ended December 31, 2006 complied
with the Caode on Corporate Governance Practices as
sef out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was
established in compliance with Rute 3.21 of the Listing
Rules for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group's financial reporting process
and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises
the three independent non-executive directors and the
two non-executive directors of the Company.

AUDITORS

Upon the expiry of terms of Emst & Young Certified Public
Accountants as the international auditors of the
Company in 2005, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified
Public Accountants Hong Kong was appointed as the
new international auditors of the Company, and was
subsequently re-appointed in 2006.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong will retire in 2007, and a proposal for the
appointment of international auditors of the Company
will be submitted for consideration at a general meeting
of the shareholders of the Company to be held later in
2007.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
GENG Xiaoping
Chairrman

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
April 24, 2007
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

During the financial year 2006 (the "Period”), the
Supervisory Committee duly performed its supervisory
duties, and safeguarded the legitimate interssts of the
shareholders and the Company in accordance with
relevant rules and regulations under the Company Law
of the PRC, the Company’s Articles of Association and
the Rules of the Supervisory Committee. Main tasks
undertaken by the Supervisory Committee during the
Period were to assess and supervise lawfulness legality
and appropriateness of the activities of the Directors,
General Manager and cther senior management of the
Company in their business decision-making and daily
management processes, through a combination of
activities including holding meetings of the Supervisory
Committee and attending meetings of sharsholders and
meetings of the Board. The Supenvisory Committee has
carefully examined the operating results and the financial
standing of the Company, and discussed and reviewed
the financial statements to be submitted by the Board
to the general mesting.

The Superviscry Committee concluded that during the
Period, the Directors, General Manager and other senior
management of the Company actively pursued
management measures that included technical
innovations and strengthening of internal controts,
promoting the continued steady growth in its core
business operations as weli as non-core business
operations, while carrying out the third phase of the
Widening project along the Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo
Expressway.. The improved quality of the expressway
and services provided a safer, smoother, more
comfortable and expedient traveling environment for
travelers, resulting in significant business and social
benefits white providing sound returns to shareholders.

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.

The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Company for 2006 prepared by the
Board for submission to the general mesting of
shareholders, and concluded that the financial
staterments accurately reflected the financial position of
the Company in 2006, and complied with the relevant
laws, regulations and the Company's Articles of
Association. In 2006, the Company maintained a high
cividend yield, providing satisfactory return in cash to
the shareholders.

During the Period, the members of the Board, General
Manager and other senior management of the Company
have complied with their fiduciary duties and worked in
good faith and diligence while carrying out their
responsibilities. There was no incident of abuse of power
or infringement of the interests of shareholders or
employees.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the various
results obtained by the Board and the management of
the Company.

By the order of the Supervisory Committee

Ma Kehua
Chairman of the Supervisory Committeg

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
April 28, 2007




Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.
{Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited lability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhejiang Expressway Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries {collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 96, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at December 31, 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Cormpanies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and trug and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at
December 31, 2006 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Fublic Accountants

Hoeng Kong
April 24, 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended December 31, 2006

2006 2005
NOTES Rmb'000 Rmb’'000
Revenue 7 4,763,780 3,458,385
Operating costs (2,076,670) (1.195,428)
Gross profit 2,687,110 2,260,957
Qther income 7 203,952 185,947
Administrative expenses (71,022) (62,766}
Other expenses {32,901} (41,635}
Finance costs 8 (71,991) (101,343)
Share of profit of associates 4,435 7,217
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 23,344 16,285
Profit before tax 9 2,742,927 2,264,862
Income tax expense 10 {884 036} (692,366)
Profit for the year 1,858,891 1,572,296
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 1,652,871 1,431,192
Minarity interesis 206,020 141,104
1,858,891 1,572,296
Dividends 13
Interim, paid - Rmb7 cents (2005: Fmb7 cents) per share 304,018 304,018
Final, proposed - Rmb20 cents (2005: Rmb15 cents) per share 868,623 651,467
EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 Rmb38.06 cents Rmb32.95 cents

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.




Consolidated Balance Sheet

At December 31, 2006

2006 2005
NOTES Rmb'000 Rmb’000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 15 13,775,621 13,422,605
Prepaid lease payments 16 390,658 387,448
Goodwill 17 91,428 85,472
Other intangible assets 18 144,727 -
Interests in asscciates 20 224,857 226,871
Interest in a jointly controlled entity 21 87,982 79,907
Available-for-sale investments 22 1,000 1,000
Expressway operating rights 23 179,845 188,545
14,896,118 14,331,848
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 12,255 6,446
Loan to an associate 24 - 116,000
Trade receivables 25 54,451 21,744
Other receivables 26 180,514 316,238
Prepaid lease payments 15 18,626 18,138
Held-for-trading investments 27 229,880 612,097
Bank balances held on behalf of customers 28 2,507,763 -
Bank batances and cash 29 1,670,385 829,145
4,673,874 1,919,808
Assets classified as held for sale 427 -
4,674,301 1,919,808
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 30 369,323 402,221
Trade payable to customers arising from securities dealing business 31 2,501,593 -
Tax liabilities 537,265 334,048
Other taxes payable 20,293 31,779
QOther payables and accruals 32 409,740 327,471
Dividend payab's 41,595 33,379
Interest-bearing bani and other loans 33 397141 886,539
Provisions 34 34,800 -
4,311,750 2,015,437
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held {or sale 995 —
4,312,745 2,015,437
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) 361,556 (95,629)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 15,257,674 14,296,219
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At December 31, 2006

2006 2005
NOTES RmMb*000 Rmb’000

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank and other loans a3 448,266 548,198
Long-term bonds 35 1,000,000 1,000,000
Deferred tax liabilities 36 456,956 384,153
1,905,222 1,932,351
13,352,452 12,363,868

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 37 4,343,115 4,343,115
Reserves 7,550,189 6,852,803
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 11,893,304 11,195,918
Minority interests 1,459,148 1,167,950
13,352,452 12,363,868

The consolidated financial staternents on pages 54 toc 96 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on April 24, 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

Geng Xiaoping Fang Yunti
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year enced December 31, 2006

Attributable
. to equity
Statutory Statutory holders
Share Share surplus public welfare Dividend Retained of the Minority
capital premium reserve fund reserve profits Campany interests Tatal
Rrmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmi"000 Rmb’C00 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
At January 1, 2008 4,343,115 3,645,726 292,951 431,448 651,467 755,504 10,720,211 1,092,295 11,812,506
Profit for the year nd
total recognised Income - - - - — 1431192 1,431,192 141,104 1,572,296
Dividend paid to
minority interests - - - - - - - {65,449 (65,449)
[nterim dividend - - - - —  (304018) {304,018} — (304,018
Dividend paid to sharsholders
of the Company - - - - 851,467) - {651,467) - (651,467)
Proposed final dividend - - — - 851,467 {651,467} - - -
Transfer 1o reserve - - 175,103 - - {175,103 - - -
At December 31, 2005 4,343,115 3,645726 1,068,054 431,448 651,467 1,096,108 11,195,318 1,167,950 (109,095
Profit for the year and
{olal recognised income — - - - — 1,652,871 1,652,871 206,020 1,858,891
Dividend paid to minority interests - - - - - - - {109,095) {109,095
Interim dividend - - - - —  {304,018)  {304,018) —  {304,018)
Dividend paid to shareholders
of the Company - — - — (651,487 - (B51,467) - 651,467)
Proposed final dividend (Note 13) — - - - 868,623 (868,623) — - -
Transfer to reserve — - 588,388 (431,448 - (156,940} - - -
Acquisition of & subsidiary - - - - - - - 194,273 194,273
At December 31, 2006 4343115 3645726 1,656,442 - 868,623 1,379,398 11,893,304 1,459,748 13,352,452
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended December 31, 2008

STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE

In accordance with the Company Law of the Pecple's Republic of China (the "PRC") and the respective articles of
association of the Entities {as defined below), the Company, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entity
{collectively the “Entities”) are required to allocate 10% of the profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting standards and regulations applicable to the Entities, to the statutory surplus reserve until such
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective Entities. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
Company Law of the PRC and the respective articles of association of the Entities, part of the statutory surplus
reserve may be converted to increase the respective Entities’ capital.

STATUTORY PUBLIC WELFARE FUND

in prior years, in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the Entities are required to transfer 5% to 10% of the
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and regulations applicable to the
Entities, to the statutory public welfare fund, which is non-distributable except in the event of the liguidation of the
Entities. The statutory public welfare fund must be used for capital expenditure on staff welfare facilities and these
facilities remain property of the Entities.

Under the amended Company Law of the PRC effective January 1, 2008, the Group is no longer required to make
appropriation to the statutory public welfare fund. Pursuant to a circular on enterprise financial treatments following
the implementation of the amended Company law of the PRC issued by the Ministry of Finance {Cai Qi [2006] No. 67),
the Group transferred the balance of the statutory public welfare fund at December 31, 2005 amounting to
Rmb431,448,000 1o the statutory surplus reserve.

According to the relevant regulations in the PRC, the amount of profit available for distribution is the lower of the
amount determined under PRC accounting standards and financial regulations and the amount determined under
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended December 31, 2008

2006 2005
NQTES Rmb’000 Rrmib' 000
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES a9 2,413,558 1,983,251
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 26,481 40,151
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (686,210) {945,093)
Acquisition of a subsidiary 38 {213,151) -
Advances to third parties {131,100) —
Investment in an associate (525) (53,500}
Dividends received from an associate 6,000 13,365
Repayment from {loan to) an associate 116,000 {(116,000)
Repayment from {loan to} a related party 260,000 -
Dividends received from a jointly controlled entity 14,723 15,008
Dividends received from available-for-sale investments 100 -
Proceeds on disposal of property,plant and equipment 1,678 576
Increase in time deposits {25,680} (23,892)
Proceeds on disposal of held-for-trading investments 624,921 84,537
Purchases of held-for-trading investmanis (7,840) -
Proceeds on disposal of an associate 5,000 -
NET CASH {USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES {9,603) (9B4,848)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (955,485) (941,176)
Dividends paid to minority interests {100,879) (65,449)
New bank and other loans raised 800,000 1,140,000
Repayment of bank and other loans {1,367,031) {1,130,264)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,623,395) {996,889)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 780,560 1,514
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 723,513 721,999
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,504,073 723,513
REPRESENTED BY
Bank balances and cash 29 1,275,690 569,431
Time deposits with original maturity of less than three months when acquired 29 228,383 154,082
1,504,073 723,513
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2006

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zhejiang Expressway Co. Ltd. {the "Company”} was established on March 1, 1997. The H shares of the Company (“H
Shares”) were subsequently listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) on May 15,
1997.

Ali of the H Shares of the Company were admitted to the Official List of the United Kingdom Listing Authority (the
“Official List"). Dealings in the H Shares on the London Stock Exchange commenced on May 5, 2000.

On July 18, 2000, with the approval of the Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic Co-operation of the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC"), the Company changed its business registration into a Sino-foreign joint stock limited
company.

On February 27, 2001, the trading of the H Shares of the Company on the Berlin Stock Exchange commenced
following a secondary listing on 1he Unofficial Regulated Market of the exchange.

On February 14, 2002, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, following the approval by the Board
of Directors and the China Securities Regulatory Commission, declared the registration statement in respect of the
ADSs evidenced by the ADRs reprasenting the deposited H Shares of the Company effective.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company is Zhejiang Communications
Investrnent Group Co., Ltd. (the "Communications Investment Group”}, a state-owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the annual
report.

The consofidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("“Rmb”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal activities:
(@ the design, construction, operation, maintenance and management of high grade roads;

(b} the development and provision of certain ancillary services such as advertising, automobile servicing and fuel
facilities; and

{c) the provision of securities broking services and proprietary trading.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number of new standards, amendments and interpretations
(the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Keng Institute of Certified Public Accountants {the "HKICPA™ which are
gither effective for accounting periods beginning on or after December 1, 2005 or January 1, 2008. The adoption of
the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new standards, amendment or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these standards, amendment
or interpretations other than HKFRS 8 and HK {IFRIC)-Int12 will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group. The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the impact of HKFRS 8
and HK (IFRIC)-Int 12 on the results and the financial position of the Group.

HKAS1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures’

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures’

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments?

HK(FRIC)-int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies?

HK(IFRIC}-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 24

HK{FRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives®

HK{FRIC}-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Inpaiment?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions’

HK(IFRIC)-int 12 Service Concession Arrangements®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2007
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or afier March 1, 2006
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after May 1, 2006
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after June 1, 2006
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Novembar 1, 2006
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after March 1, 2007
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2008

@ ~ @ ot A BN =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial staternents have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposals, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's equity
therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary's equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, and liabilities incurred or assumed by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilties are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair
value of the assets, iiabilities and contingent fiabilities recognised.

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.




3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

GOODWILL
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to January 1, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the agreement date is before January 1, 2005 represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries, is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired {see the accounting
policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after January 1, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the agreement date is on or after January 1, 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented separately in the consolidated batance
shest.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets
of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income staternent. An impainment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
pericds.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

An asscciate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
that associate, the Graup discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liahility is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that asscciate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the relevant associate.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities are carried
in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and of changes in equity of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity {(which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further logses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recegnised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointty controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the agset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Neon-current assets and disposal groups are classified as hetd for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal greup) is available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Non-current assets {and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal
groups’) previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Toll income from the operation of tolled roads is recognised when the tolls are received and become receivable.
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Commission income from securities broking business is recognised on a trade date basis.

Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing and sub-placing commission income are recognised in accordance with the
terms of the underlying agreements or deal mandates when relevant significant acts have been completed.

Advisory and other fee income is recognised when the relevant transactions have been arranged or the relevant
services have been rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal cutstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicablie, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the sharsholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

EXPRESSWAY OPERATING RIGHTS

Expressway operating rights represent the rights to operate the expressways and are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over the term of the expressway operating rights granted to the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress}) are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and eguipment other than construction in
prograss over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Estimated Annual

usetul life depreciation rate
Buildings 30-50 years 1.9-3.2%
Toll stations and ancillary facilities 30 years 3.2%
Communications and signalling equipment 5 years 19.4%
Motor vehicles 5-8 years 12.1-19.4%
Machinery and equipment 5-8 years 12.1-19.4%

Depreciation of expressways and bridges is calculated to write off their costs over their estimated useful lives in the
rermaining expressway concessionary period using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress represents costs incurred in the construction of expressways and bridges, which is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on borrowed funds during the period of construction, installation and testing. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equiprment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when ne future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is dereognised.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Payments for obtaining land use rights are considered prepaid lease payments under operating leases and are
amortised over the lease term using the straight-line method,
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recarded in its functional currency {i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance shest date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes which are defined contribution schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

TAXATION
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Kabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the comresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for
using the balance sheet liability rmethod. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises fram goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance shest date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to aflow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such
intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses below),

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.




3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment when there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired (see the accounting policies in respect of impairment losses for tangible and intangible assets below}.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (OTHER THAN GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (SEE THE ACCOUNTING POLICES IN RESPECT OF GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS ABOVE))

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced {o its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequentty reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

INVENTORIES

Inventories, representing goods held for resale, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the consolidated batance sheet when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to tha acquisition or issue of financial assets and financiat
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss} are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables, financial assets held for trading and available-
for-sale financial assets. All reguler way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require defivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are sel out below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables {including trade
receivables, other receivables and loans to associates and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial assets held for trading

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets held for trading are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as any of the categories
of financial assets set out above.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost fess any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Financial liability and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial iabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables, amounts due to jointly controlled entities and ultimate
holding company, dividend payable, interest-bearing bank and other loans, and long-term bonds are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interast method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated as at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contact at the higher of: {i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount initially recognised tess, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

2006 ANNUAL REPORT

65




66

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continusd)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit cr loss.

Financial liabiiities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be reguired to settle that cbligation. Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in the next financial year are disclosed below.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

In determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the estimation
of future cash flows to determine the impairment loss. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
lossas that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued}

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at December 31, 2006, the carrying
amount of goodwill was Rmb@1,428,000. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 19.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES

Determining whether intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use
of themselves or the cash-generating unit to which they belong. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from themselves or the cash-generating unit to which they belong and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at December 31, 2006, the carrying amounts of intangible assets with indefinite
useful lines were Rmb53,863,000. Details of the recoverable amount caculation are disclosed in Note 19.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A} FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s maijor financial instruments include available-for-sale investments, held-for-trading investments, loans to
associates, trade and other receivables, bank balances held on behalf of customers, trade and other payables,
amounts due to jointly controlled entities and ultimate holding company, dividend payable, interest-bearing bank and
other loans, and long-term honds. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate bank and other loans, and long-term bonds (see
Notes 33 and 35 for details of these borrowings).

The Group currently does not have an interest rate risk hedging policy as the management consider the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk. The management will continue to monitor interest rate risk exposure
and consider hedging against it should the need arises.

Currency risk

The Group has long-term borrowings denominated in United States dollars ("USD”), which exposes the Group to
foreign currency risk.

The Group currently does not have a currency risk hedging policy as the management considers that the risk is not
significant. The management will continue to monitar foreign curency risk exposure and consider hedging against it
should the need arises.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
{AY FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

Price risk

The Group’s held-for-trading investments are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date. Therefore, the Group
is exposed to equity and debt security price risk.

The Group currently does not have a price risk hedging policy as the management consider the Group is not exposed
to significant price risk. The management will continue to manitor price risk exposure and consider hedging against it
should the need arises.

Credit risk

As at December 31, 2008, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financiai loss to the Group
due 1o failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees issued by the Group arising
from;

= the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet;
and

* the amount of contingent liabilities disclosed in Note 42.

in order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each balance
shaet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is manly in the PRC.
Liquidity risk

Most of the bank balances and cash at December 31, 2006 were denominated in Bmb which is not a freety convertible
currency in the international market. The exchange rate of Rmb is determined by the PRC government and the
remittance of these Bmb funds out of the PRC is subject to foreign exchange controls imposed by the PRC government.

The Group closely monitors its cash position resulting from its operations and the directors consider that the Group
has sufficient liquid assets generated from its operations to enable the Group to meet in full its financial obligations as
they fall due for the foreseeable future.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

{B) FAIR VALUE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

s the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active
ligquid markets and determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices respectively; and

»  the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabitities are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis or using prices from observable current market
transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting practice, the Group uses business segments as its primary
segment reporting format. During the year, the entire turnover and profit contribution from operating activities of the
Group were derived from the Zhejiang Province in the PRC. Accordingly, no further geographical segment information
is presented.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed separately according to the nature of services provided,
with each segment representing a strategic business unit that serves different markets:

— Toll operation represents the design, construction, operation and management of high grade roads and the
collection of the expressway tolls.

— Service area businesses mainly represent the sale of food, restaurant operation, automobile servicing as well as
the operation of petrol stations.

—  Advertising business represents the design and rental of acdvertising billboards along the expressways.

— Road maintenance represents the maintenance of expressways and roads, inctuding the cleaning of the road
surface, minor repairs 1o the lanes, the cleaning of the gutters and sewers, grass mowing, afforestation and
maintenance service provided to third parties in respect of buildings, equipment and facilities.

—  Securities operation represents securities broking and proprietary trading. Securities operation was newly acquired
in 2006. For details, please refer to Note 38.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue mainly represents income from the operation of tolled expressways, the operation of service area businesses,
the provision of advertising services, the provision of road maintenance services, the provision of securities broking

services and proprietary trading, net of relevant revenue taxes.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, net of revenue taxes, and other income for the year is as follows:

2006 2005

Rmb"000 Rmb'000

Toll operation revenue 3,562,289 3,182,807
Service area businesses revenue 962,418 225,702
Advertising business revenue 50,239 45,374
Road maintenance revenue 5,464 2,502
Securities operation revenue 183,370 -
Total revenue 4,763,780 3,456,385
Gain on fair value changes on held-for-trading investments 80,421 33,882
Interest income 26,481 40,151
Net exchange gain 22,299 18,461
Towing income 21,691 20,318
Rental income 21,362 45,341
Others 31,698 27,694
Total cther income 203,952 185,947
4,967,732 3,642,332

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to the business tax levied at 3% on toll income and 5% on other service
income and income from proprietary securities trading. in addition, the subsidiaries are subject to the following types

of revenue taxes and surcharges:

— city development tax, levied at 1% to 7% of business tax;
— education surcharge, levied at 2% to 5% of business tax; and

— culture and education fund, levied at 3% on advertising income.
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8. FINANCE COSTS

2006 2005
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within five years 13,896 29,768
Interest on other loans 31,505 34,528
Interest on long-term bonds 42,900 42,900
Total borrowing costs 88,301 107,196
Less: amount capitalised (16,310) 5,853}
71,991 101,343
9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group’s profit before tax has been arrived at after charging {crediting):
2006 2005
Rmb’000 Rrrib"000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 623,439 535,015
Operating lease rentals in respect of land use rights {included in operating costs) 18,380 18,138
Amortisation of exprassway operating rights (included in operating costs) 8,700 8,700
Amortisation of other intangible assets (included in operating costs) 3,133 -
Loss on digposal of property, plant and eguipment 4,211 518
Auditors' remuneration 3,671 2,165
Staff costs (including directors and supervisors):
- Wages and salaries 171,629 138,678
- Pension scheme contributions 20,764 10,419
192,393 149,097
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 845,818 158,391
Share of tax of associates (included in share of profit of associates} 4,918 6,717
Share of tax of a jointly contrelted entity (included in share of profit of a jointly controlled entity) 11,662 8,181

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO,, LTD.




10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had no taxable profits derived in Hong Kong during the

year.

The Group was subject to enterprise income tax (“EIT") levied at a rate of 33% of taxable income determined in

accordance with the PRC laws and financial reporting system.

2006 2006
Rmb'000 Rmb’'000
Current PRC income tax 876,874 654,471
Deferred tax (Note 36) 7,162 37,895
884,036 692,366
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the consolidated income statement as follows:
2006 2005
Rmb'000 % Rmb'000 %
Profit before tax 2,742,927 2,264,662
Tax at the PRC statutory income tax rate 905,166 33.0 747,338 33.0
Tax effect of share of profits of associates {1,464) (0.1) (2,382) {0.1)
Tax effect of share of profit of a jointly controlied entity (7,703) (0.3) (5.374) 0.2}
Effect of tax exemption granted to a subsidiary - - (51,408) (2.3)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes (22,118) (0.8) (12,337} {0.5)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 10,155 0.4 16,529 0.7
Tax charge and effective tax rate for the year 884,036 3z2.2 692,366 306

In 2005, in accordance with the approval from the Zhejiang Provincial |_ocal Tax Bureau, Zhejiang Shangsan Expressway
Co., Ltd. {"Shangsan Co"), one of the Company's subsidiaries, was entitled to a 30% EIT exemption for the year
ended December 31, 2005 under the category of “Enterprises providing employment opportunities to redundant
workers with an employment term of a minimum of three years” as defined in the relevant national tax rules. As a
result, the tax exemption for the year ended December 31, 2005 amounted to Rmb51 ,408,000 had been applied

directly to reduce the EIT for 2005.

No such exemption has been granted to the Group in 2006,
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12. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emolumants of the five highest paid individuals in the Group were as follows:

2006 2005

Rmb'000 Rmb'000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,957 2,056
Bonuses paid and payable 1,263 8399
Pension scheme contributions 60 41
3,280 2,996

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group during the year included four (2005: four} directors,
whose emoluments are set out in Note 11 above, as well as a non-director employee, whose emoluments for the year
was less than HK$1,000,000 {equivalent to Rmb1,040,000).

13. DIVIDENDS

The final dividend of Rmb20 cents (2005: Rmb15 cents) per share has been proposed by the directors and is subject
to approvat by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company of Rmb1,652,871,000 (2005: Rmb1,431,192,000) and the 4,343,114,500 (2005: 4,343,114,500) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented.as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue in both
years.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Communi-
Toll stations cations
Expressways and ancillary and signalling Motor Machinery  Construction
and bridges Buildings facilities  equipment vehicles and equipment  in progress Total
Rmb’'00C Rmb'000 Rmb’'000 Rmby'000 Reb'000 Rmb'000 Rmi'000 Amb'00)
COST
AL January 1, 2005 11,519,106 - 371,664 322,752 123573 164,145 1334658 13835238
Additions 6,939 - 6,149 13431 13,589 39597 1,214074 1393779
Transfers 1,682,484 - 11,817 166 - 3940 1,698,407 -
Reclassifications - - 37 4,274 450 {4,761) - -
Disposals - - — (9486) (2.860) - - {3,806}
At December 31, 2005 13,208,529 - 389,667 330,677 134,752 202921 950,325 15,225,871
Additions 2410 - 5€i8 10,993 10,974 39,161 633,369 702,520
Acquired on acquisition
of a subsidiary - 272520 - - 4,775 20,847 - 268142
Non-current assets classified
as held-for-sale - - - - {195) (B4) - 279)
Transfers 75,349 - 35,256 - - 1,596 {112,201 -
Reclassifications - 64,676 (54,064) (15,753) {228) 5,369 -
Disposals (16.102) (1,804) (11,9486) (8,336) {7,598 (15,152) - {60,938)
At December 31, 2006 13,270,186 335,332 364 531 326,579 142477 254658 1471493 16185316
OEPRECATION
At January 1, 2005 878,146 - 64,936 188,843 68,346 70,692 — 1,270,963
Provided for the year 455,862 - 12,383 40,401 11,128 15,231 - 535,015
Reclassifications - - (275) 124 4 147 - -
Disposals - — — (493) {2.219) - - 2,712
Al December 31, 2005 1,334,008 - 77,054 228,875 77,259 86,070 - 1,803,266
Provided for the year 526,239 5127 18,562 373N 13,740 22,460 - 623,438
Reclassifications (54) 12,482 (12,394} {3,000 (99 3,185 - -
Transfers - - - - - - - -
Disposals 1,523 (1.206) {8,953) (7.841) (6,959) {10,526} - (37.010)
At Dacember 31, 2006 1,858,670 16,403 74,269 255,255 83,941 101,157 - 2,389,695
CARRYING VALUES
At December 31, 2006 11,411,516 318,989 260,262 71,324 58,636 153,501 1,471,493 13,775,621
At December 31, 2005 11,874,521 - 312613 110,802 57,493 116,851 950,325 13,422,805

The property, plant and equipment are mainty located in the PRC.,
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The carrying value of properties shown above comprises:

2006 2005
Rmb'000 Rmiz"000
Land in the PRC:
Long lease 11,947 -
Medium-term lease 307,042 -
318,989 —
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
2006 2005
Rmb'000 Rrrb'000
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:
Leasehold land in the PRC:
Medium-term lease 409,284 405,586
Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current assels 18,626 18,138
Non-current assets 390,658 387,448
409,284 405,586

The amount represents the prepayment of rentals under operating leases for "land use rights” situated in the PRC.

17. GOODWILL

Rmb'000
COsT
At January 1, 2005 and January 1, 2006 85,472
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary 5,966
At December 31, 2006 91,428

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in Note 19.
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Securities firm Trading
Customer base license seats Total
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000

COosT
At January 1, 2005 and January 1, 2006 - - - -
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary 93,997 51,783 2,080 147,860
At December 31, 2006 93,997 51,783 2,080 147,860
AMORTISATION
At January 1, 2005 and January 1, 2008 — - — -
Charge for the year 3,133 - - 3,133
At December 31, 2006 3,133 - — 3,133
CARRYING VALUES
At December 31, 2006 90,864 51,783 2,080 144,727

At December 31, 2005 - - — —

The above intangible assets were purchased as part of a business combination during the year.

The customer base of the securities operation has a definite useful life. It is amortised on a straight-line basis over 15
years.

The securities firm license of the securities operation is considered by the management of the Group to be have an
indefinite useful life because it can be renewed at minimal cost even though the current license is effective for three
years.

The trading seats of the securities operation is considered by the management of the Group to have an indefinite
useful life because there is no economical on regulatory limit 1o their useful life.

Particulars of the impairment testing are disclosed in Note 19.
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19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES

As explained in Note B, the Group uses business segments as its primary segment for reporting segment information.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives set out in
Notes 17 and 18 have been allocated to three individual cash generating units {CGUs), including two subsidiaries in
toll operation segment and one subsidiary in securities operation segment. The carrying amounts of goodwill and
other intangible assets as at December 31, 2006 allocated to these units are as follows:

Securities Trading
Goodwill firm license seats
Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000
Toll operation

- Zhejiang Jiaxing Expressway Co., Ltd. (“Jiaxing Co") 75,137 - -
- Zhejiang Shangsan Expressway Co., Ltd ("Shangsan Co") 10,335 — -

Securities operation
- Zheshang Securities Co., Ltd. {"Zheshang Securities”) 5,956 51,783 2,080
01,428 51,783 2,080

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the management of the Group determines that there has been no
impairment of any of its CGUs containing goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

Jiaxing Co and Shangsan Co

The racoverable amounts of Jiaxing Co and Shangsan Co are determined based on value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to discount rates, growth rates, and expected changes in toll
revenue and direct costs during the period. Those calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management cavering a five-year period and a discount rate of 156%. No growth rate has been assumed
beyond the five-year period.

Zheshang Securities

The recoverable amount of Zheshang Securities is determined based on value in use calculations. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the discount rate, growth rates and profit margin during the period. Those
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a four-year
period and a discount rate of 23.5%. No growth rate has been assumed beyond the four-year period.
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2006 2005
Rmb'000 Rrmb'000
Unlisted investments in associates, at cost 184,996 189,471
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividends received 39,861 42,704
224 857 232,175

Amount due from an associate - {5,304}
224,857 226.871

The amount due to an associate was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

At December 31, 2008, the Group had interests in the following associates:

Form of Place of Percentage of equity
business registration interest attributable
Name of entity structure and operation to the Group Principal activities
2006 2005
% %

Zhejiang Expressway Corporate The PRC 50 50 Construction and
Petroleum Devetopment operation of petrol
Co., Ltd. ("Petroleum Co™") stations and sale of

petroleum
products

JoinHands Technology Corporate The PRC 27.58 27.58 Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd. ("JoinHands Co") services and anti-

counterfeiting
systems in the
PRC

Zhejiang Concord Property Corporate The PRC 22,95 22.95 Investment and
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Concord Co™ real estate

development

Hangzhou Yuhang Corporate The PRC 16.3 15.3 Investment and
Communication Time real estate
Plaza Co., Ltd. development

Zhejiang Jiashao Expressway Corporate The PRC 35 35 Construction and
Co., Ltd. (“Jiashao Co™ management of the

Jiashao Expressway

Ningbo Expressway Corporate The PRC 12.5 - Management of

Advertising Co,, Ltd,

advertising billboards
along expressways
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (i  Concord Cois a 45%-owned associate of Zhejiang Expressway Investment Devetopment Co., Ltd (*Development

Co"), a 51%-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(i) Time Plaza Co is a 30%-owned associate of Zhejiang Yuhang Expressway Co.. Ltd (“Yuhang Co"), a 51%-owned

subsidiary of the Company.

(il Mingbo Advertising Co is a 35%-owned associate of Znejiang Expressway Advertising Co., Ltd {*Advertising Co"), a

70%-owned subsidiary of Development Co.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set out below:

2006 2005
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
Total assets 13,290,436 1,074,162
Total liabilities (722,450} {478,508)
Net assets 567,986 595,654
Group's share of net assets of associates 224 857 232,175
Revenue 2,642,196 1,877,952
Profit for the year 28,966 37.281
Group's share of results of associates for the year 4,435 7.217
21. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
2006 2005
Rmb'000 Amb’000
Unlisted invastment in a jointly controlled entity, at cost 65,000 65,000
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividends received 28,823 20,202
93,823 85,202
Arnount due to a joinily controlled entity (5,841) (5.295}
87,982 79.907

The amount due to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

At December 31, 20086, the Group had interests in the following jointly controlled entity:

Percentage
Form of Place of of equity
business registration interest held Prafit Principal
Name of entity structure and operation by the Group sharing activities
Hangzhou Shida Corporate The PRC 50% 50% Construction and operation of

Expressway Co., Ltd.

the Shigiao-Dajing expressway
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21. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s jointly controlled entity which are accounted for using
the equity method is set out below:

2006 2005
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
Current assets 13,629 10,553
Non-current assets 154,019 160,847
Current liabilities (69,089) {81,276)
Non-current liabilities (4,736) {4,922)
Income 49,160 42,247
Expenses 25,816 25,962
22. AVALABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
2006 2005
Rmb*'000 Rmb 000
Unlisted equity investments, at cost 1,000 1,000

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities established
in the PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date because the range of reasonable
fair value estimated is so significaint that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot
be measured reliably.
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23. EXPRESSWAY OPERATING RIGHTS

Rmb’'000
COST
At January 1, 2005, December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006 261,000
AMORTISATION
At January 1, 2005 63,755
Charge for the year 8,700
At December 31, 2005 72,455
Charge for the year 8,700
At December 31, 2008 81,155
CARRYING VALUES
At December 31, 2006 179,845
At December 31, 2005 188,545

The above expressway operating rights were granted by tha Zhejiang Provincial Government to the Group in 1897 for
a period of 30 years. During the 30-year expressway concessionary period, the Group has the rights of construction
and management of Shanghai-Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway and Shangsan Expressway and the toll-collection
rights thereof. The Group is required to construct, maintain and operate the expressways in accordance with the
regulations promulgated by the Ministry of Communication and relevant government authorities.

24. LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE

The loan to an associate was unsecured, carried fixed interest at 10% per annum and was fully repaid on February 1,

2006.

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group allows an average credit period of approximately 180 days to its trade customers. An aged analysis of

trade receivables at the balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

2008 2005

Rmb'000 Rmb’G0O0

Within 1 year 52,773 20,470
1to 2 years 471 1,274
Qver 2 years 1,207 -
54,451 21,744
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26. OTHER RECEIVABLES

2006 2005

Rmb’000 Rmb'000

Daposits and other debtors (Note) 163,495 34,445
Prepayments 17,019 21,793
Entrusted loan to a related party (Note 44(a)) - 260,000
180,514 316,238

Note:  Included in deposits and other debtors at December 31, 2006 was capital contribution into Zheshang Securities on behalf
of certain equity holders of Rmb131.1 million. For details, please refer to Note 38.

27. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

2006 2005
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
Listed securities in the PRC, at fair value:

Equity securities 226,586 —
Open-end equity funds 3,294 -
Government bonds - 588,137
Close-end equity funds - 23,960
229,880 612,097

28. BANK BALANCES HELD ON BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

From its securities operation, the Group receives and holds money deposited by customers and other institutions in
the course of the conduct of its securities broking activities. These customers’ money are maintained in one or more
segregated bank accounts. The Group has recognised the camresponding trade payable to respective customers and
other institutions.

Bank balances held on behalf of customers carry interest at market rates which range from 0.99% tc 1.62%.

Bank balance held on behalf of customers that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of
the respective group entities are set out below:

HKD uUsD
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
As at December 31, 2006 4,880 14,055

Ag at December 31, 2005 — —
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29. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

2006 2005

Rmb'000 Rb'000

Unrestricted bank batances and cash 1,275,690 569,431
Restricted bank balance {Note) 35,000 -
Time deposits with ariginal maturity of less than three months when acquired 228,383 154,082
Time deposits with original maturity over three months when acquired 131,312 105,632
1,670,385 829,145

Note: Included in bank balances at December 31, 2006 was an amount of Rmb35,000,000 which had been frozen by China
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited Shanghai Branch in connection with a guarantee issued by Zheshang

Securities, a subsidiary acquired during the year. For details, please refer to Note 34.

Bank balances carrying interest at market rates which range from 0.72% to 1.44%. Time deposits carry fixed interest

rates ranging from 1.62 to 2.5%.

Bank balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other than the functionat currency of the respective

group entities are set out below:

HKD usob

Rmb‘000 Rmb'000

As at December 31, 2006 1,546 8,661

As at December 31, 2005 58 2

30. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

2006 2005

Rmb’000 RmMb'000

Within 1 year 357,172 368,672

110 2 years 11,323 26,786

2to 3 years 714 3,211

Over 3 years 114 3,652

369,323 402,221

31. TRADE PAYABLE TO CUSTOMERS ARISING FROM SECURITIES DEALING

BUSINESS

The settlement terms of trade payables arising from the securities dealing business are one day after the trade date.
No aged analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors an aged analysis does not give any additional value in

view of the nature of the business.
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32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2006 2005

Rmb'000 Rmb*"000

Accruals 56,999 80,277
Other liabilities 350,142 232,444
Amounts due to related parties (Note 36} - 12,151
Amount due to ullimate holding company {Note 37) 2,599 2,599
409,740 327,471

The amounts due to related parties controlled by the communications Investment Group were unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

The amount due to ultimate holding company, the Communications Investment Group, is unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER LOANS

2006 2005
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
Bank loans, unsecured 125,000 630,000
Other loans, unsecured 720,407 804,737
845,407 1,434,737
Bank loans repayable:
Within one year 125,000 630,000
Other loans repayable:
Within one year 27214 256,540
In the second year 91,275 87,871
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 291,448 289,744
Beyond five years 65,543 170,582
720,407 804,737
845,407 1,434,737
Less: Amount due within one year
shown under current liabilities {397,141) {886,539}
448,266 548,198

The bank loans carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 5.02% to 5.58% per annum.

The other loans carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 3.00% t¢ 5.16% per annum and are repayable by semi-

annual instalments, with the last instalment to fall due in October 2015.

The bank and other loans of the Group that are denominated in currencies other than Rmb amounted to
Rmb657,807,000 (USD84,240,000) as at December 31, 2006 (2005: Rmb732,137,000 {(USDS0,721,000)).
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34. PROVISIONS

Provision represents the obligation of Zheshang Securities, a subsidiary acquired during the year, under guarantees
issued in respect of the state bond investrent agency agreements and fund trust agreements entered into between
Kinghing Trust Investment Co., Ltd. (“Kinghing Investment”), the former majority equity owner of Zheshang Securities,
and its corporate customers. As Kinghing Investment have ceased its operations and its restructuring is underway,
the directors consider that it is probabie that such guarantees will be exercised. As a result, a full provision has been
made by Zheshang Securities prior to its acquisition. For details, please refer to Note 42.

35. LONG-TERM BONDS

2006 2005
Rmb’'000 Renb'00%
Long-term bonds — listed in the PRC 1,000,000 1,000,000

The long-term bonds are unsecured, carry interest at a fixed rate of 4.28% per annum and are repayable in 2013
upon maturity.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the long-term bonds estimated by discounting their future cash flows
at the prevailing market borrowing rate for similar borrowings of 5% at the balance sheet date approximates their
carrying amount.

36. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior years:

Neon-deductible

loss on disposal Revatuation of Fair value
of property, plant held-for-trading Accelerated adjustments
and equipment investments tax depraciation {Note 38} Total
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rrnb"000 Rmb’'000
At January 1, 2005 (38,319) (4,210) 388,787 - 346,258
Charge (credit) to
income statement
for the year (Note 10} 38,319 7.176 (7.600) - 37,895
At December 31, 2005 — 2,966 381,187 - 384,153
Acquisition of a subsidiary — 8,633 - 57.008 685,641
Charge {credit} to income
statement for the year (Note 10) - 17,344 {9.021) {1,161) 7,162
At December 31, 2006 - 28,943 372,166 55,847 456,956
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37. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Share capital
2006 2005 2006 2005
Rmb'000 Rrmi’000
Registered, issued and fully paid:
Dormestic shares of Rmb1.00 each 2,909,260,000 2,909,260,000 2,909,260 2,809,260
H Shares of Bmb1.00 each 1,433,854,500 1,433,854,500 1,433,855 1,433,855
4,343,114,500 4,343,114,500 4,343,115 4,343,115

There were no movements in share capital during both years.
The domestic shares are not currently listed on any stock exchange.

The H Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since May 15, 1997. The H Shares were admitted to the
Official List on May 5, 2000 and their dealings on the London Stock Exchange commenced on the same day.

On February 27, 2001, the trading of the H Shares of the Company commenced on the Berlin Stock Exchange
following a secondary listing on the Unofficial Regulated Market of the exchange.

On February 14, 2002, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, following the approval by the Board
of Directors and the China Securities Regulatory Commission, declared the registration statement in respect of the
ADSs evidenced by ADRs representing the deposited H Shares of the Company effective.

All the domestic shares and H Shares rank pari passu with @ach other as to dividends and voting rights.

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

In order to prevent the potential loss of its state bonds held with Zheshang Securities (formerly known as Kinghing
Securities Co., Ltd.), which had been pledged as security for certain third party repo transactions and the funds
obtained misappropriated by Kinghing Investment, the Company decided to acquire 70.46% equity interest in Zheshang
Securities via Shangsan Co and participate in its restructuring. Under the restructuring, Shangsan Co injected Rmb600
million additional capital into Zheshang Securities for itself and on behalf of other equity holders in proportion to their
respective interests in Zheshang Securities. Certain equity holders have provided undertakings in writing to Shangsan
Co to repay Shangsan Co the capital contributed by Shangsan Co on their behalf amounting to Rmb131.1 million
(included in other receivables (see Note 26)) by assigning to Shangsan Co their rights to receive future dividends from
Zheshang Securities until their repayment obligations are discharged in full. The remaining capital contribution of
Rmb468.9 million represents the consideration for Shangsan’s acquisition of 70.46% equity interest in Zheshang
Securities.

Upon receipt of the RmbB00 million capital contribution, Zheshang Securities accounted for it as capital reserve. The
aforementioned repo transactions were subsequently setiled, the security over the Company’s state bonds released
and the state bonds fully recovered.

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.




38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The acquisition was approved by the China Securities Regutatory Commission on June 14, 2006. The Group assumed
control over Zheshang Securities with effect from July 1, 2006, when an extracrdinary general meeting of equity
holders was heid to approve the new articles of association and to elect representatives of the Group onto a new
session of the board of directors,

This acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method. The amount of goodwill arising as a resutt of the
acquisition was Rmb5,956,000.

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwill arising, are as follows:

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before Fair value
combination adjustments Fair value
Rmib'00C Rmb’'000 Rmib'000
Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 213,251 84,891 208,142
Prepaid lease payments 22,078 - 22,078
Other intangible assts 20,722 127,138 147,860
Other receivables 8,553 - 8,563
Held-for-trading investrments 63,030 - 63,030
Bank balances held on behalf of customers 2,252,727 — 2,252,727
Bank balances and cash 290,749 - 290,749
Trade payable to customers arising from securities dealing business (2,248,089) - (2,248,089)
Tax liabilities {38,662) - (38,562)
Other taxes payable (1,363) - (1,363)
Other payables and accruals (37,467) — (37,467)
Provisions (34,800} - (34,800)
Deferred tax llabilities (8,633) (57,008) (65,841)
502,196 155,029 657,217
Minority interests (194,273)
Goodwill arising on acquisition 5,956
Total consideration, satisfied by cash 468,900
Net cash inflow (outflow) arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid {468,900}
Bank balances and cash acquired, net of restricted bank
balances of Rmb35,000,000 (Note 28) 255,749

213,151

In the opinion of the directors, the consideration for this acquisition represents a true reflection of the net fair value of
Zheshang Securities’ identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

Zheshang Securities contributed Rmb183,370,000 and Rmb 121,876,000 to the Group's revenue and profit for the
period repectively between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.
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38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

If the acquisition had been completed on January 1, 2006, total group revenue for the period would have been
Bmb5,045,569,000 and profit for the year would have been BEmb1,939,359,000.

The pro forma informaticn is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily the indicative results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on January 1, 20086, nor is it intended to be
a projection of future results,

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconciliation of profit before tax to net cash from operating activities:

2006 2005
NOTES Rmb'000 Rmb'000
Profit before tax 2,742,927 2,264,662
Adjustments for:
Share of profit of associates {4,435) {7.217)
Share of profit of a jointly?controlled entity {23,344) (16,285)
Depreciation of property ,plant and equipment 623,439 535,015
Amortisation of other intangible assets 3,133 —
Operating lease renials in respect of land use rights 18,380 18,138
Amortisation of expressway operating rights 8,700 8,700
Interest income {26,481) {40,151)
Finance costs 71,99 101,343
Dividend income (100) -
Gain on fair value changes on held-for-trading investments (72,302) (20,187)
Net exchange gain (22,299) (18,461}
Loss on disposal of property ,plant and equipment 4,211 518
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 3,323,820 2,826,075
Increase in inventaries {5,809) (30)
{Increase} decrease in trade receivables {32,837) 4,825
Decrease (increase) in other receivables 16,637 (258,672}
Increase in held-for-trading investments (99,532} —
Increase in bank batances held on behaif of customers (255,038) —
{Increase) decrease in amount due from an asscciate - 2,775)
(Decrease) in amount due to an associate (5,304) -
{Decrease) increase in trade payables {32,083} 49,917
{Decrease) increase in other taxes payable {12,843) 7.436
Increase {decrease) in other payables and accruals 63,015 (31,606)
Increase in amount clue to a jointly-controlled entity 546 1,182
Increase in trade payable to customers arising from securities dealing business 253,504 —
Cash generated from operations 3,214,078 2,596,352
Interest paid (88,301) (107,196)
income taxes paid (712,219) {505,905)
Net cash from operating activities 2,413,558 1,983,251
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The employees of the Group are members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. To supplement this existing retirement benefits scheme, the Group adopted a corporate annuity scheme
during the year in accordance with relevant rules and regulations. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of payroll costs to these retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these retirement benefits schemes is to make the specified contributions.

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2006 2005
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
Contracted for but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements:
— Proposed capital injection into Jiashao Co 1,110,375 1,110,375
- Construction of expressways 1,010,014 1,458,833
— Proposed acquisition of additional interest in Shangsan Co 485,000 485,000
- Proposed investment in Zhejiang Jinhua Yongjin Expressway Co., Ltd.
(“Jinhua Co") (Note 45) 281,400 —
— Renovation of service areas 4,256 —
- Office decoration 1,939 —
2,892,984 3,054,308
Authorised but not contracted for:
— Construction of expressways 855,340 945,277
- Purchase of machinery 80,000 87,250
- Renovaticn of service areas 45,000 —
980,340 1,032,527

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Fourteen customers of Zheshang Securities previously entered into state bond investment agency agreements with
Kinghing Investment, whereby Zheshang Securities kept in custody state bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
Rmb106.5 million. These state bonds were pledged as security for certain third party repo trading transactions and
the funds obtained were misappropriated by Kinghing Investment. Kinghing Investment was unable to return the
misappropriated funds in time and as a result, the security over the state bonds was enforced to settle the relevant
repo trading transactions.

In the opinion of directors, Kinghing Investment should take full responsibility for breach of the state bond investment
agency agreements. Currently, Kinghing Investment has ceased its operations and its restructuring is underway. It is
understood that the 14 customers have already registered their claims with Kinghing Investment's restructuring team.
At the date of this report, one of the 14 customers has started legal proceedings against Zheshang Securities for
disputes over the state bond investment agency agreement.
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42, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES {Continued)

After consultation with their legal advisors and other legal experts, the directors believe that, from a legal point of view,
Zheshang Securities should not take any legal responsibility, whether or not all the 14 customers choose to take them
1o court, However, one should not rule out the possibility that the court may, after considering, inter alia, Zheshang
Securities role in the performance of the state bond investment agency agreements, request Zheshang Securities to
share part of the fiability. The impact to the consolidated financial statements as whole is not expected to be material
though should this situation arises.

In addition, a full provision has been made for guarantees issued in regpect of the state bond investment agency
agreements and fund trust agreements entered into between Kinghing Investment and its corporate customers. For
details, please refer to Note 34,

No provision has been made for guarantees amounting to Rmb17.8 million issued in respect of the fund trust agreements
entered into between Kinghing Investrment and its individual customers because {j) these individuals have already
registered their claims with Kinghing Investment’s restructuring team; and (i) under the relevant state policies, these
individuals are expected to be compensated for their loss in principal in full by the state.

43. OPERATING LEASES

THE GROUP AS LESSOR

The Group leased their service areas and communication cables under operating lease arrangements, with negotiated
terms ranging from one to 25 years. Rental income comprises a base amount plus an contingent rental. Contingent
rent is based on the sales volums of the lessee. Contingent rent income for the year ended December 31, 2006
amounted to nil (2Z005: Rmb11,723,000).

At December 31, 2006, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

2006 2005

Rmb’000 Rmib' 000

Within one year 12,742 19,395
In the second to fifth years inclusive 17,218 43,728
After five years 28,688 28,659
58,648 91,782
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following is a summary of the related party transactions arising from the Group's daily operating activities:

@)

(b}

()

{d)

On November 17, 2005, the Group signed an entrusted loan contract with Zhejiang Jinji Property Co., Ltd {“Jinji
Co"), a subsidiary of the Communications Investment Group, via Bank of Communications. Pursuant to the
contract, the Communications Investment Group agreed to provide a half-year loan of Rmb260,000,000 to Jinji
Co via the bank at an interest rate of 6.55% per anrum. The entrusted loan was guaranteed by the Cormnmunications
Investment Group. The entrusted loan was repaid on April 29, 2006.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the equity holders of Development Co. on December 28, 2005, Development Co
entrusted China Everbright Bank Hangzhou Zhacohui Branch to provide a loan of Rmb50,000,000 to Concord
Co, an associate of the Group, from January 5, 2006 to January 5, 2007 at an interest rate of 10% per annum.
The loan was repaid on June 20, 2006. Pursuant to the resolutions of the equity holders of Development Coon
December 28, 2006, Development Co entrusted China Everbright Bank Hangzhou Zhaohui Branch to provide a
loan of Rmb46,000,000 to Concord Co from January 23, 2006 to January 23, 2007. The loan was repaid on
June 28, 2006.

During 2006, Development Co and Petroleum Co entered into an operation management agreement in respect
of the petrol stations in the service areas along the Huhangyong and Shangsan Expressways. Pursuant to the
agreement, Petroleum Co will run the six petrol stations owned by Development Co along the Huhangyong and
Shangsan Expressways and the soon-to-be completed Changan Service Area petrol station. Purchases of
petroleum products from Petroleum Co during 2006 amounted to Rmbo734,160,000.

See notes 20, 21 and 32 for details of batances with associates, jointly controlled entity and other related parties
respectively.

Transactions and halances with other state-controlled entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government {“state-controlled entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under the Communications Investment Group which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with the Communications Investment Group and parties under the common control of the Communications
Investment Group, the Group also conducts business with other state-controlled entities. The directors consider
those state-controlled entities are independent third parties so far as the Group's business transactions with them are
concerned.
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44, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions, including deposit placements, borrowings and other
general banking facilities, with certain banks and financial institutions which are state-controlled entities in its ordinary
course of business. In view of the nature of those banking transactions, the directors are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.

In respect of the Group’s tolled road business, the directors are of the opinion that it is impracticable to ascertain the
identity of counterparties and accordingly whether the transactions are with other state-controlled entities in the PRC.

45. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The following significant events took place subsequent to December 31, 20086:

(i

(i)

(i)

On March 10, 2007, the Company entered into an equity purchase agreement with Jinhua Municipal Road
Management Office and Dongyang Municipal Communications Investment Co., Ltd. to acquire from them an
aggregate of 23.45% equity interests in Jinhua Co for a consideration of Rmb281,400,000. Jinhua Co owns
100% interest in the Jinhua section of the Yongjin Expressway, which runs 689.7km and commenced operation
on December 28, 2005.

In March 2007, Shanghai Kinghing Securities Research Institute Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Zheshang Securities,
was sold for Bmb1,150,000.

The Company plans to dispose of its 27.58% equity interest in JoinHands Co at the property exchange centre in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations on state-owned asset management. On April 19, 2007, the
Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with Guangzhou Zhongda Kaisi Group Co., Ltd. (*Zhongda
Kaisi”) whereby Zhongda Kaisi has undertaken to bid for such equity interest at the property exchange centre at
a price no less than its valuation to be determined by an accredited valuer.

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.




46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Date and Percentage of equity
place of Registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary of registration capital to the Company Principal activities
Rmb Direct Indirect
Yuhang Co. Note 1 75,223,000 51 — Construction and management
of the Yuhang Section of the
Shanghai-Hangzhou Exprassway
Jiaxing Co Note 2 1,859,200,000 99.998454 - Construction and management
of the Jiaxing Section of the
Shanghai-Hangzhou Expressway
Shangsan Co Note 3 2,400,000,000 73.625 — Construction and management
of the Shangsan Expressway
Development Co Note 4 80,000,000 51 — Operation of service areas as well
as roadside advertising along the
the expressways operated
by the Group
Advertising Co. Note 6 1,000,000 — "35.7 Provision of advertising services
Zhejiang Expressway Note 6 8,000,000 - "43.35 Provision of vehicle towing, repair
Vehicle Towing and and emergency rescue services
Rescue Service Co., Ltd.
{(“Service Co")
Hangzhou Roadtone Note 7 3,000,000 - *26.01 Provision of advertising services
Advertising Co., Ltd.
{“Roadtone Co")
Zheshang Securities Note 8 520,000,000 - ~51.88 Operation of securities business
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

- Thess three companies are subsidiaries of Development Co, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and, accordingly,
are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Gompany's control over them.

- The company is a subsidiary of Shangsan Co, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and, accordingly, is accounted
for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Company’s control over it.

Note 1: Yuhang Co was established on June 7, 1994 in the PRC as a joint stock limited company and was subsequently restructured
into a limited Hability company under its current narne an November 28, 1996.

Note 2: Jiaxing Co was established on June 30, 1994 in the PRC as a joint stock limited company and was subsequently restructured
into a limited liability company under its current name on November 29, 1996.

Note 3: Shangsan Co was established on January 1, 1998 in the PRC as a limited liability company.
Note 4: Development Co was established on May 28, 2003 in the PRC as a limited liability company.
Note 5: Advertising Co was established on June 1, 1898 in the PRC as a limited fiability company.
Note 6: Service Co was established on July 31, 2003 in the PRC as a limited liability company.

Note 7: Roadtone Co was established on July 27, 2004 in the PRC as a limited liability company.

Note 8: Zheshang Securities was established on May 9, 2002 in the PRC as a limited liability company. It was previously known as
*Kinghing Securities Co., Ltd.” before being acquired by Shangsan Co.

All of the Company's subsidiaries are operating in the PRC. None of them had in issue any debt securities at the end
of the year.

ZHEJIANG EXPRESSWAY CO., LTD.
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Location Map of Expressways Operated by the Group
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